
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687 
 

Agenda 

Regular Meeting 

City of Lake Worth 

Historic Resources Preservation Board 

City Hall Commission Room  

7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL 

 

 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2016 6:00 PM 
 

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda  
 

4. Approval of Minutes 
 
A. November 9, 2016 RM Minutes 
 

5. Cases 
 
A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants 
 
B. Proof of Publication 
 
C. Withdrawals/Postponements 
 
D. Consent 
 

1. HRPB Project Number 16-00100235: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) for a rear screen porch addition to the single-family residence located at 406 
North L Street; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-110-0030. The subject property was constructed 
in 1947 and is a contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local Historic 
District. 

 
E. Public Hearings 
 

1. Board Disclosure 
 

2. HRPB Project #16-00100200:  Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) for 301 South Federal Highway for new construction of a +/- 6,281 square foot, 
two-story, three-unit townhome structure on the southwest corner of S. Federal 
Highway and 3rd Avenue South, 301 South Federal Highway. The 0.15 acre site is 
currently undeveloped and is located in the Mixed Use-Federal Highway (MU-FH) 



December 14, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

zoning district and the Southeast Lucerne Local Historic District. PCN# 38-43-44-21-
15-109-0090. The Applicant is requesting a continuance to a date certain of January 11, 
2016. 

 
F. Unfinished Business 
 
G. New Business 
 

1. HRPB Project Number 16-00100236: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) for exterior alterations and two additions to the single-family structure located at 
204 North Lakeside Drive; PCN# 38434421150360010.  The subject structure was 
constructed c.1978 and is a non-contributing resource within the Old Lucerne Local 
Historic District. 

 
2. HRPB Project Number 16-00100241: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness 

(COA) for roof replacement to the subject property located at 1122 North O St, PCN# 
38-43-44-21-15-356-0060.  The subject building was constructed in 1947 and the 
property is a contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local Historic 
District. 

 
6. Planning Issues 

 
7. Public Comments (3 minute limit) 

 
8. Departmental Reports 

 
9. Board Member Comments 

 
10. Adjournment 

 
11. If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with 

respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of 
the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105) 
 
NOTE: ALL CITY BOARDS ARE AUTHORIZED TO CONVERT ANY PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP SESSION WHEN A QUORUM IS NOT 
REACHED. THE DECISION TO CONVERT THE MEETING INTO A WORKSHOP 
SESSION SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CHAIR OR THE CHAIR'S DESIGNEE, 
WHO IS PRESENT AT THE MEETING. NO OFFICIAL ACTION SHALL BE TAKEN 
AT THE WORKSHOP SESSION, AND THE MEMBERS PRESENT SHOULD LIMIT 
THEIR DISCUSSION TO THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FOR THE PUBLICLY 
NOTICED MEETING. (Sec. 2-12 Lake Worth Code of Ordinances) 
Note:   One or more members of any Board, Authority or Commission may attend and speak at 
any meeting of another City Board, Authority or Commission.    
All project-related back-up materials, including full plan sets, are available for review by the 
public in the Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division located at 1900 2nd Avenue 
North. 



 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

1900 2nd Ave N · Lake Worth, Florida 33461 · Phone: 561-586-1687 
 
 
 

Agenda 

Regular Meeting 

City of Lake Worth 

Historic Resources Preservation Board 

City Hall Commission Room  

7 North Dixie Hwy; Lake Worth, FL 

 

 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 09, 2016 6:00 PM 
 

1. Roll Call and Recording of Absences 
Present were: Chairman Herman Robinson; Vice-Chair Darrin Engel; Erin Fitzhugh Sita; Judith 
Just; Robert D’Arinzo 
Absent: Madeleine Burnside 
Also present: Aimee Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator; Jordan Hodges, Preservation 
Planner; Maxime Ducoste, Assistant Director for Planning & Preservation; Pamala Ryan, Board 
Attorney; Sherie Coale, Board Secretary. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Additions/Deletions/Reordering and Approval of the Agenda  
No additions, changes, or deletions to the agenda. 
Motion: J. Just moves to accept the agenda, E. Fitzhugh Sita  

Vote: Ayes all, unanimous 
4. Approval of Minutes 

 
A. October 19, 2016 Meeting Minutes 

Motion: E. Fitzhugh Sita moves to approve the October 2016 minutes, J. Just 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 

B. September 21, 2016 HRPB Workshop Minutes 
Motion: E. Fitzhugh Sita moves to approve the September 21, 2016 HRPB workshop 
minutes, J. Just 2nd. Chairman asked for clarification on statement regarding vinyl, will be 
amended upon confirmation by A/V recording. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 

 
5. Cases 

 
A. Swearing in of Staff and Applicants 
Board Secretary administered oath. 
B. Proof of Publication 
Provided in the meeting packet 

1. Lake Worth Herald Publication 
 



November 9, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

C. Withdrawals/Postponements: None 
 
D. Consent: None 
 
E. Public Hearings 
 

1. Board Disclosure 
D. Engel visited 230 N. Palmway in the course of Halloween activities with child. Will not 
affect his decision making abilities. 
2. HRPB Project #16-00100228: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 

for the demolition of a contributing 250 square foot accessory garage structure, 
installation of a new in-ground pool, and the construction of a new +/-  901 square 
foot accessory structure including a historic waiver from the accessory structure. 
Limitations at 230 N. Palmway; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-038-0080. The subject property 
is contributing to the Old Lucerne Local Historic District. 
Staff: A. Sunny presents case including analysis and staff findings. Historic waiver 
consideration for accessory structure. Allowable square foot limitations for the 
accessory structure is 697 square feet (based on 40 % of primary structure or 1,000 sq 
feet whichever is less.) Proposed square footage is 979 square ft. 11.8 % in excess of 
Code. 
Board: Demolition of garage requires permit and simultaneous application for new 
construction. Question regarding setback for second story, it is 17 feet. Measurements 
are taken from either 12 inches above the crown of road or finished floor height. 
Applicant: P. Weisman- Provides justification, mentions the improvements are for own 
personal use, not air B&B as some neighbors do. Mentions square footage of accessory 
structures of nearby neighbors. 
Board: Inquiries about landscaping shrubbery around pool and rear of property. 
Applicant is proposing shrubs rather than fence in the limited area near the alley. 
Public Comment: Ginnie Powell 224 North Palmway- believes it will create aural and 
visual invasion of her property despite the attractiveness of the accessory structure. 
Would be in favor of increasing the footprint but removing the 2nd floor even if it 
created a variance for building lot coverage.  
Board: Inquires as to how it impedes the use of the property.  
Public: Ms. Powell believes it does not restrict use of property but she now has privacy. 
Does not have any trees in that area. The presence of a pool increases the use of the 
backyard which increases noise to her property, cited a nearby neighbors’ pool. Property 
can be sold or rented at any time. She has lived at property for 27 years and has kept the 
property nicely. Believes it is reasonable to ask for maintaining her privacy that she has 
had for years. Has not spoken to the owners. 
Staff: Noticing requirements were met. 
Board: The 2nd story is allowed by right as is a pool. 
Public: Brian Gleason 302 N Palmway, property owner to north of proposed project. 
Would like it approved as designed. 5 nearby properties have been significantly 
improved increasing value in the neighborhood. Will also overlook his backyard but is 
ok with it. 
Board: Board recognizes Ms. Powell’s concerns regarding changes to neighboring 
properties. Explains how a potential homeowner’s expectations can be seen through 
code. We live in an urban area and appreciates the time neighbor took to come to the 
meeting. Reiteration of the 2-story allowed by right also allows for smaller footprint and 



November 9, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

more landscape. Moving away from a larger footprint in a floodplain area is also 
preferable with regard to health/safety issues.  
Staff: Historic waiver approved as related to the findings of fact should be part of 
motion. Historic waiver provisions allows Board to increase the site landscaping or add 
conditions to mitigate the waiver. 
Motion: E. Fitzhugh Sita moves to approve HRPB Project #16-00100228:  including 
the waiver with the four findings of fact, subject to staff recommended conditions D. 
Engel 2nd. Motion is amended and seconded to add shade tree on southeast property 
line, subject to landscape code, to provide additional privacy.  Storm-water retention is 
already a code requirement. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 
Board: Would like to staff to consider increasing accessory structure limitation to 60% 
or 1,000 square feet through an LDR amendment. 

F. Unfinished Business: None 
 
G. New Business 
 

1. HRPB Project #16-00100215: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for an addition for the single-family structure located at 1005 North Palmway; PCN# 
38-43-44-21-15-298-0150. The subject property was constructed in 1940 and is a non-
contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local Historic District. 
Staff: A. Sunny presents case, analysis and findings. 
Applicant: Not present. 
Board: Asks if there is a contractor or if homeowner self-contracting, and whether the  
word “engineering” be removed from the Conditions of approval as “engineering 
drawings” are not required for residential permits. Building department will review at 
time of permit.  
Public Comment: None 
Motion: D. Engel moves to approve HRPB Project #16-00100215 with conditions as 
recommended by staff with word “engineering” removed, E. Fitzhugh Sita 2nd. 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 
 

2. HRPB Project #16-00100234: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
for window and door replacement for the single-family structure located at 1401 South 
Lakeside Drive; PCN# 38434427010770080.  The subject property was 
constructed in 1953 and is a non-contributing resource within the South Palm Park 
Local Historic District. 
Staff:  A. Sunny presents case, analysis and findings. Previous administrative approval 
for installation of windows and doors. A September 9 inspection revealed installation 
was not in compliance with conditions. Not consistent with goals of Comp plan, review 
criteria in LDR, or historic guidelines Dept. of the Interior. 
Board: Inquiry if this is a revised COA, staff states New COA. Windows have been 
ordered and not yet installed. Why the change? 
Applicant: Christine Harasz and Rennie Newmark self-contracting and ordered the 
wrong size, installer told her to order transom. Muntins do not go with mid-century 
modern. Need for new windows and electric bill is high, will add muntins if required but 
prefers not to. Contractor verified the sizes to be ordered were correct. Homeowners 
did not realize until later, sorry that it has happened. Ms. Harasz states it was her 
mistake. Not high enough, by 12 inches, width is ok. 



November 9, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

Staff: States the transom style was utilized in mid-century but is more in keeping with 
Deco style. There was a previous staff level COA approval, which was not followed. 
The previous approval acknowledged the condition of old windows and the need for 
replacement. 
Applicant: Upgrading property, less window area with impact windows. Adding 
plantation shutters inside will create the look of jalousie windows. Non-contributing 
property, making house something that it is not. Needs new windows as they are in 
poor repair. 
Staff: Board: Staff previously allowed either silver or white frames based upon 
discussions with applicant. 
Public Comment: Marion Cone LW Historical Society- Agnes Ballard 1st PBC 
registered architect, and was taught by Frank Lloyd Wright. Only other structure 
designed by her is in Northwood, West Palm Beach with no drawings. Ask Board to 
carefully consider the original drawings. Architect designed as far north as Vero Beach. 
Staff: 2 openings (4 windows) face the street 2 openings (4 windows) do not face the 
street. 
Applicant: North elevation changes include door is gone steps exist. East elevation 
(back door) is where the front door is now located. 
Board: Unsure of the look of the transom windows, otherwise the windows look good. 
If the home were of Frank Lloyd Wright design, it would be incredibly well designed.  It 
stands as an example of an Agnes Ballard house. 
Staff: Compromise suggesting street-facing windows be replaced to meet criteria and 
proper size windows. Replace non-street facing with 4 windows already ordered be 
allowed as proposed. Applicant is not in agreement due to having already ordered (10 
windows) the product. Not replacing 4 on the west side at this time. 

Several Board members like the look of the current front windows. Conditions should 
include the removal of accordion shutters. Applicant requesting no muntins. Conditions 
in the staff report match the original Certificate of Appropriateness approval. 
Motion: E. Fitzhugh Sita moves to approve HRPB Project #16-00100234 with 
Condition #5, addition of requirement to remove accordion shutters, no reflective glass 
shall be allowed and no deviations from the plans as submitted by the applicant today. 
With regard to the historic waiver, a finding of fact that no historic materials were 
removed. R. D’Arinzo 2nd 
Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 
Staff: Disagrees with Board’s determination tonight as it is in direct conflict with staff’s 
previous administrative approval and would like it entered into the record. 
 

6. Planning Issues 
Board: E. Fitzhugh Sita-with regard to the vinyl fence approval last month clarifies/further 
explains her decision process. Consensus from Board members appears to be allowing in both 
the front and rear, going against code and does not want to appear arbitrary. Should request a 
change by the City Commission to revise the code to allow vinyl fencing in the entire City. 
Would also like a revision of percentage of accessory structure coverage limitation increased. 
Board attorney inquires if Board is considering requesting of the City Commission to revise 
LDR’s. Should be submitted to City Commission by Staff as a discussion item. Assistant 
Director Planning & Preservation states we must also take the item to P&Z Board and achieve 
a general consensus for recommendation to the City Commission. The proposed LDR change 
must be recommended by both Boards. E. Fitzhugh Sita would like it on the agenda with 
opportunity for public comment. 



November 9, 2016 Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

Staff: A. Sunny presents a draft letter to the Mayor and City Commission for design guidelines. 
Board approves of letter for Chairman signature. 

7. Public Comments: (3 minute limit) None 
 

8. Departmental Reports: 
Casino- LDR presentation and how it has been successful in the City. E. Fitzhugh Sita reminds 
all of the Planning Congress Board, continuing education and session available next year for 
professionals. Once the link is received, one can register. PBC Planning.org  

9. Board Member Comments: 
Staff: A. Sunny comments on her concern for Board decisions contrasting with previous staff 
level decisions (admin approval). Perception seems to be if applicant disagrees with staff, just 
take the case to Board and applicant can get the approval they desire. 
Board: asks about big black building- M. Ducoste reminds Board there are no paint color 
restrictions within the City. 828 N Lakeside is for sale. 801 Lake Ave-pink building is 
progressing nicely. J. Just asks about Gulfstream status-petition is on appeal, filed and City has 
responded. Lakeside Castle is for sale. Books ‘Cottages of Lake Worth’ are available for sale. H. 
Robinson –workshop items to be addressed. Assistant Director for Planning & Preservation 
provides that it has been difficult to gather any consensus. H. Robinson asks if a new workshop 
would be helpful. With regard to the trailers at Academy of Positive Learning, it appears a 
Condition of Approval has been violated. Reference is made to a recently approved Ordinance 
related to violation of Conditions becoming a City Code violation. Board attorney advises a 
lawsuit could be filed. 
E. Fitzhugh Sita- City Commission approved a PACE provider for financing. Loan is a tax 
assessment, lien against your home for improvements such as windows, roofs, AC and solar 
systems. 

10. Adjournment: H. Robinson, 2nd R. D’Arinzo 8:01 PM 
 
 
Attest:     __________________________ 
      Herman Robinson, Chairman 
 
Submitted By:    __________________________ 
      Sherie Coale, Board Secretary 

 
Minutes Approved:   ___________________________ 
       Date 
 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 
Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

 

MEMORANDUM DATE:   December 7, 2016 

 

AGENDA DATE:  December 14, 2016 

 

TO:   Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

RE:   406 North L Street 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department for Community Sustainability 

 

TITLE:  HRPB Project Number 16-00100235: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for a rear 

screen porch addition to the single-family residence located at 406 North L Street; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-110-

0030. The subject property was constructed in 1947 and is a contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne 

Local Historic District. 

 

OWNER:  Marie Burkhardt 

                  406 N L Street  

                  Lake Worth, FL 33460 

 

  

BACKGROUND:  

The property at 406 North L Street has a one-story single-family residence that was constructed in 1952 in the 

Frame Vernacular Style.  The property has public frontage on North L Street to the west.  Character defining 

features of the building include the original wood double hung 6/6 windows, wood window trim, metal window 

awnings, and asbestos siding. Changes to the building include an addition to the north side of the structure in 

1953 and roof replacement with a compatible material.  Overall, the building retains a high degree of historic 

integrity of location, setting, materials, design, and craftsmanship.  

 

REQUEST:  

The Applicant has submitted plans for a 247 square foot screen porch addition to the one-story house on the 

subject property. The aluminum framed screen porch addition is proposed to have a solid insulated aluminum 

roof and will be located on the rear of the existing structure, facing the east. The Applicant has provided 

proposed architectural plans for the building, including a site plan, floor plans, and elevations. 

  

The screen porch addition will have an aluminum frame, screen walls, and a concrete slab foundation. The screen 

porch’s roof will attach to the rear existing exterior wall under the existing roof system.   

 

The subject property is zoned Single-family and Two-family Residential (SF-TF 14) and is subject to the 

development standards for this district in the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

An addition to a single-family residence is permitted, so long as it conforms to the required development criteria 

in §23.3-8 of the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code. The following table includes some of the basic specifications for 

the proposed construction: 

 



HRPB No. 16-00100235 

406 N L St 

COA Application – Screen Porch Addition 

Page 2 

 

Dimension Required by Code Existing or Proposed 

Lot size 5,000 sq. feet for single family 

7,500 sq. feet for two family 

8,775 sq. feet  

Lot width 50’-0” for one unit 

75’-0” for two units 

65’-0” 

Front (West) setback 20’0” 29.6’ existing 

Side setback 10% of lot width, Compliance 

with non-conforming status 

North= 9.8’ existing, 9.8’ proposed 

South= 8.8’ existing, 8.8’ proposed 

Rear (East) setback 15.0’ for primary building 75.0’ existing; 62.0’ proposed 

F.A.R.1 0.45 Appx. 0.22 proposed 

Max. Building Coverage2 30% max. Appx. 22% proposed 

Impervious surface 50% max.  Appx. 30% proposed 

 

 

ANALYSIS:   

Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Consistency  

Overall, the proposed new construction project is consistent with the development requirements in the City’s 

Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan.   

 

Historic Preservation 

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided in this application and applied the applicable 

guidelines and standards found in the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance, detailed in Attachment 1 – Decision 

Criteria.  

 

It is the analysis of Staff that the project as proposed is compatible with the review criteria set forth in the historic 

preservation regulations.  The screen porch enclosure is not visible from North L Street, and is located at the rear 

of the structure.  The proposed design of the screen porch is compatible with the simple Frame Vernacular style 

of the house.  Staff did have concerns as to how the screen porch roof would tie into the existing structure’s roof 

system, given the lack of detail on the drawings. Staff consulted with the contractor, and was advised that the 

existing gutter system will be removed and the porch roof will be attached to the wall under the existing eave 

overhang.  Staff concurs with the contractor that this will be the best option to minimize any adverse effects on 

the structure’s roofline, and to allow for proper water drainage. 

 

Public Comment 

At the time of publication of the agenda, Staff has not received any public comment regarding this project.  

 

 

 

 

                                                           

1
 Floor area ratio:  A regulatory technique which relates to total developable site area and the size (square feet) of 

development permitted on a specific site.  A numeric rating assigned to each land use category  

that determines the total gross square feet of all buildings as measured from each building’s exterior walls based upon the 

actual land area of the parcel upon which the buildings are to be located.  Total gross square feet calculated using the 

assigned floor area ratio shall not include such features as parking lots or the first three (3) levels of parking structures, aerial 

pedestrian crossovers, open or partially enclosed plazas, or exterior pedestrian and vehicular circulation areas. 
2
 Building lot coverage: The area of a lot covered by the impervious surface associated with the footprint(s) of all buildings on 

a particular lot.  Structured parking garages are exempt from building lot coverage. 



HRPB No. 16-00100235 

406 N L St 

COA Application – Screen Porch Addition 

Page 3 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

The project, as proposed, is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan goals and objectives concerning 

future land use and housing: 

 

Goal 1.3 The preserve and enhance the City’s community character as a quality residential and business center 

within the Palm Beach County urban area. (Objective 1.3.4) 

 

Goal 1.4 Encourage preservation and rehabilitation of historic and natural resources and where appropriate 

restrict development that would damage or destroy these resources. (Objective 1.4.2) 

 

CONSEQUENT ACTION:   

Approve the application; approve the application with conditions; continue the hearing to a date certain to 

request additional information; or deny the application. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends approval of the requests for a screen porch addition with the following conditions: 

 

1) An expansion joint shall be used between the existing structure and the proposed addition as needed in 

order to avoid damage to the existing building. 

2) The existing structure shall be properly protected during construction so as not to incur damage from the 

addition.  

3)  The roofline to the proposed addition shall connect to the exterior wall of the existing structure 

underneath the eave overhang to minimize any adverse effects to the existing structure’s roofline, subject 

to staff review during permitting and approval during construction. 

4) The screen porch shall be designed and constructed so that it shall be considered a permanent structure. 

5) If possible, the aluminum frame structure shall have a matte finish, rather than glossy.   

 

POTENTIAL MOTIONS:   

 

I MOVE TO APPROVE HRPB 16-00100100235: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) a screen 

porch addition for the subject building located at 406 N L St, with the conditions as recommended by Staff, based 

upon the preponderance of competent substantial evidence, and pursuant to the City of Lake Worth Land 

Development Regulations Section 23.5-4. 

 

I MOVE TO DENY HRPB 16-00100235: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for a screen porch 

addition for the subject building located at 406 N L St because the Applicant has not established by a 

preponderance of the competent substantial evidence that the application is in compliance with the City of Lake 

Worth Land Development Regulations Section 23.5-4, the Secretary of the interiors Standards for the 

Rehabilitation of Historic Properties, and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Decision Criteria 

2. Photographs  

3. Proposed Architectural Drawings 

 

 

 

 



HRPB No. 16-00100235 

406 N L St 

COA Application – Screen Porch Addition 

Page 4 

 

 

LOCATION MAP 
 

 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: December 7, 2016 

 

TO: Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department of Community Sustainability 

 

SUBJECT:          HRPB Project Number 16-00100235: Consideration of a Certificate of 

Appropriateness (COA) for a rear screen porch addition to the single-family residence 

located at 406 North L Street; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-110-0030. The subject property 

was constructed in 1947 and is a contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne 

Local Historic District. 

 

HRPB Meeting Date: December 14, 2016 

  
 

Per Section 23.5-4k(1) of the historic preservation ordinance, the Board shall use the 

following criteria in making a determination: 

 

A.   What is the effect of the proposed work on the landmark or the property upon which such work 

is to be done?   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the proposed work on the property located at 406 N L Street 

will have no adverse effect on the historic appearance or significance of the building. 

 

B.   What is the relationship between such work and other structures on the landmark site or other 

property in the historic district?   

Response: The proposed work will have no direct physical effect on any surrounding properties within 

the surrounding Northeast Lucerne Local Historic District.  

 

C.   To what extent will the historic, architectural, or archaeological significance, architectural style, 

design, arrangement, texture, materials and color of the landmark or the property be affected?    

Response: The Applicant is not proposing to replace any original materials on the building. It is the 

analysis of Staff that the proposed screen porch addition is compatible with the architectural style of 

the single-family residence and will not adversely affect the historic integrity of the original structure. 

 

D.   Would denial of a certificate of appropriateness deprive the property owner of reasonable 

beneficial use of his property?  

Response: No, the denial of this COA as submitted does not prevent the Applicant from potentially 

proposing other alterations to the home, nor would it make the building uninhabitable. 

 

E.   Are the applicant's plans technically feasible and capable of being carried out within a reasonable 

time?  

Response: Yes. 

 



2 

 

F.   Do the plans satisfy the applicable portions of the general criteria contained in the United States 

Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation then in effect or as they may be revised from 

time to time? The current version of the Secretary's Guidelines provides as follows: 

 

(1)   A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires minimal 

change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment.   

 Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed. 

 

(2)   This historic character of the property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic 

materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.   

Response: The Applicant is not removing any historic materials from the property.  The proposed 

changes will not alter the main street-facing elevation, or other features and spaces that characterize 

this property.  The basic shape and form of the structure will not be affected by the addition. 

 

(3)   Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that 

create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural 

elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.  

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the addition will be compatible with the original Frame 

Vernacular structure, and given the difference in footprint as well as roof height and slope, the 

addition will also be easily distinguished from the main structure. 

 

(4) Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in their 

own right shall be retained and preserved.    

Response: The historically significant features of the building are being retained. 

 

(5)   Distinctive features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that 

characterize a historic property shall be preserved.   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that no distinctive features, finishes, or examples of craftsmanship 

that characterize the property are being adversely affected by the scope of work proposed.  

 

(6)   Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced, wherever possible. In 

the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 

composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities.  

 

Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of 

features, substantiated by historical, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs 

or because the different architectural elements from other buildings or structures happen to be 

available for relocation.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(7)   Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials, 

shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the 

gentlest means possible.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(8)   Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. If such 

resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 



3 

 

 

(9)   New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction shall not destroy historic 

materials that characterize the property. The new construction shall be differentiated from the old 

and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic 

integrity of the property and its environment.   

Response: The proposed new addition meets this criterion.  The addition is compatible in size, 

massing, and scale.  The footprint, roof shape, and location will make the addition easily distinguished 

from the original structure. 

 

(10)   New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner 

that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic building and its 

environment would be unimpaired.   

Response: The proposed addition could be removed at a later date, with some changes to the main 

structure.   

 

G.   What are the effects of the requested change on those elements or features of the structure which 

served as the basis for its designation and will the requested changes cause the least possible adverse 

effect on those elements or features?   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the historic character of the property would not be adversely 

affected by the proposed project as submitted by the Applicant, as outlined above. 

 

Section 23.5-4k(2). Additional guidelines for alterations. 

 

In approving or denying applications for certificates of appropriateness for alterations, the HRPB shall 

also consider the following additional guidelines:  

 

A. Is every reasonable effort being made to provide a compatible use for a property that requires 

minimal alteration of the building, structure or site and its environment, or to use the property for its 

originally intended purpose?  

Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed.  

 

B. Are the distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, structure or site and its 

environment being destroyed? The removal or alteration of any historic material or distinctive 

architectural features shall be avoided whenever possible.  

Response: No. 

 

C. When a certificate of appropriateness is requested to replace windows or doors, the HRPB shall 

permit the property owner's original design when the HRPB's alternative design would result in an 

increase in cost of thirty (30) percent above the owner's original cost. The owner shall be required to 

demonstrate to the HRPB that:  

(1) The work to be performed will conform to the original door and window openings of the structure; 

and 

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(2) That the replacement windows or doors with less expensive materials will achieve a savings in 

excess of thirty (30) percent over historically compatible materials otherwise required by this code.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 





















 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 
Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

MEMORANDUM DATE:   December 7, 2016 

 

AGENDA DATE:  December 14, 2016 

 

TO:   Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

RE:   204 North Lakeside Drive 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department for Community Sustainability 

 

TITLE:  HRPB Project Number 16-00100236: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for exterior 

alterations and two additions to the single-family structure located at 204 North Lakeside Drive; PCN# 38-43-44-

21-15-036-0010.  The subject structure was constructed c.1978 and is a non-contributing resource within the Old 

Lucerne Local Historic District. 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT:  Gilbert Rodriguez 

                          204 North Lakeside Drive 

                          Lake Worth, FL 33460 

 

  

BACKGROUND:  

The property at 204 North Lakeside Drive has a one-story Palm Beach Regency inspired single-family residence 

constructed c.1978.  The property has public frontage on North Lakeside Drive to the west, 2nd Avenue North to 

the south, and the Lake Worth Municipal Golf Course to the east.  

 

The original architectural plans for the building are not available in the City’s property files.  Based on the 

information in the City’s property file, the property had a previous structure from the 1940’s that was 

demolished in the 1950’s, and the current building was constructed c.1978.  Although the design style is 

somewhat unusual for Lake Worth, the architectural design appears to have been inspired by Palm Beach 

Regency design.  Typical characteristics of this style include symmetrical design, classical detailing, simplified 

decorative elements, and a flat roof.  Character defining features of the building include the masonry and stucco 

with flat roof construction, decorative roof finials, divided light windows, and the decorative stucco banding and 

trim.  Overall, the building retains a moderate degree of historic integrity of location, setting, materials, and 

design. 

 

REQUEST:  

The Applicant has submitted plans for a 137 sq. ft. dining room addition on the south, side façade and a 50 sq. ft. 

open-air covered front porch addition on the west, front façade of the existing house.  The Applicant has 

provided architectural plans for the building, including a site plan, floor plan, details, and elevations.  The 

Applicant is also requesting exterior alterations to replace all of the existing windows, doors, and garage doors, 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100236 

204 North Lakeside Drive 

COA Application – Addition and Exterior Alterations 

Page 2 

 

repair/replace all exterior stucco as needed, repair/replace all decorative stucco banding and window trim as 

needed, and add decorative, fixed shutters to the windows on all elevations.  The Applicant is requesting 

additional improvements to the property, which can typically be reviewed by Staff, including a new concrete 

patio on the rear of the property, a new concrete driveway on the south side of the property, and new fencing, 

including a 6’ tall horizontal wood fence facing South Lakeside Drive and 2nd Avenue North, and a 4’ tall black 

aluminum fence along the east property line facing the Golf Course. 

  

The scope of work for the dining room addition is minimal, adding only 137 sq. ft. to the existing 2,614 sq. ft. 

house.  The overall effect on the front façade will be minimal, with the addition being located mostly behind the 

existing garage, and in-line with the main structure.  The new addition will be concrete masonry construction 

with a stucco finish and will have a flat roof and aluminum windows and doors to match the existing house.  The 

scope of work for the 50 sq. ft. open-air covered porch addition is also minimal, although it will be visible from 

the street.  The porch addition will utilize concrete masonry construction with a stucco finish, and will have 

simplified traditional porch columns. 

 

The subject property is zoned Single-family Residential (SFR), and is subject to the development standards for this 

district in the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code and in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. An addition to a single-family 

residence is permitted, so long as it conforms to the required development criteria in §23.3-7 of the City of Lake 

Worth Zoning Code. The following table includes some of the basic specifications for the proposed construction: 

 

Dimension Required by Code Existing or Proposed 

Lot size 7,500 sq. feet 10,125 sq. feet  

Lot width 75’-0” 75’-0” 

Front (West) setback 20’0” 21.3’  existing and proposed 

Side setback 10% of lot width = 7’-6” North = 7’-11” existing and proposed;   

South = 19’-4” existing and proposed   

Rear (North) setback 15.0’ for primary building Appx. 35’ existing and proposed 

F.A.R.1 0.45 0.26 existing, 0.27 proposed 

Max. Building Coverage2 30% max. 27.7% proposed 

Impervious surface 50% max.  Appx. 45.7% proposed 

 

ANALYSIS:   

Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Consistency  

Overall, the proposed addition and exterior alterations are consistent with the development requirements in the 

City’s Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan, and would not require any variances from the Code.   

 

                                                           

1
 Floor area ratio:  A regulatory technique which relates to total developable site area and the size (square feet) of 

development permitted on a specific site.  A numeric rating assigned to each land use category  

that determines the total gross square feet of all buildings as measured from each building’s exterior walls based upon the 

actual land area of the parcel upon which the buildings are to be located.  Total gross square feet calculated using the 

assigned floor area ratio shall not include such features as parking lots or the first three (3) levels of parking structures, aerial 

pedestrian crossovers, open or partially enclosed plazas, or exterior pedestrian and vehicular circulation areas. 
2
 Building lot coverage: The area of a lot covered by the impervious surface associated with the footprint(s) of all buildings on 

a particular lot.  Structured parking garages are exempt from building lot coverage. 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100236 

204 North Lakeside Drive 

COA Application – Addition and Exterior Alterations 

Page 3 

 

Historic Preservation 

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided in this application and applied the applicable 

guidelines and standards found in the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance, detailed in Attachment 1 – Decision 

Criteria. 

 

It is the analysis of Staff that the two additions are fundamentally compatible with the review criteria set forth in 

the historic preservation regulations. The dining room addition is proposed on a secondary elevation of the 

building, and will have a minimal visual impact on the building as viewed from North Lakeside Drive.  The addition 

is in scale with the massing and height of the existing structure, and the proposed elevation is compatible with the 

existing south façade.  The front porch addition is also in scale with the massing, height, and detailing of the 

existing structure, and complements the existing front elevation. 

 

The exterior alterations proposed are compatible with the existing structure, and the historic regulations.  The 

proposed windows replicate the existing 6/6 single-hung windows, and the proposed shutters and revised trim 

details are compatible with the Regency architectural style.  The proposed garage doors utilize a recessed panel 

design, and simulated divided lights.  All stucco and stucco banding is proposed to be repaired or replaced in kind. 

 

Staff has had multiple pre-application meetings with the Applicant, and the Applicant has addressed most of 

Staff’s concerns with these resubmittal drawings.  Staff has recommended Conditions of Approval regarding 

specific detailing of the windows, doors, shutters, and trim. 

 

Public Comment 

At the time of publication of the agenda, Staff has not received any public comment regarding this project.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

The project, as proposed, is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan goals and objectives concerning 

future land use and housing: 

 

Goal 1.4 Encourage preservation and rehabilitation of historic and natural resources and where appropriate 

restrict development that would damage or destroy these resources. (Objective 1.4.2) 

 

Objective 3.2.5:   To encourage the identification of historically significant housing, and to promote its 

preservation and rehabilitation as referenced by the Surveys of Historic Properties conducted for the City 

of Lake Worth. 

 

Policy 3.2.5.1:  Properties of special value for historic, architectural, cultural or aesthetic reasons will be 

restored and preserved through the enforcement of the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance to the 

extent feasible. 

 

CONSEQUENT ACTION:   

Approve the application; approve the application with conditions; continue the hearing to a date certain to 

request additional information; or deny the application. 

 

 

 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100236 

204 North Lakeside Drive 

COA Application – Addition and Exterior Alterations 

Page 4 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends approval of the request for two additions and exterior alterations to the existing single-family 

structure with the following conditions: 

 

1) An expansion joint shall be used between the existing structure and the proposed addition as needed in 

order to avoid damage to the existing building, subject to Staff review at permitting. 

2) The existing structure shall be properly protected during construction so as not to incur damage from the 

addition.  Drawings may be required to show how the new roof and walls will tie into the existing 

structure. 

3) All windows and doors shall be aluminum, and shall not use reflective glass.  The windows shall be 

replaced in the existing openings, and shall not be made smaller by building in the framing. 

4) All simulated divided lights shall be created by using exterior raised applied triangular muntins.  No flat or 

internal muntins shall be permitted.  Insulated glass shall not be permitted, unless the frame is deep 

enough to accommodate the exterior raised applied muntins. 

5) The decorative fixed shutters shall be equal to half the width of the window, subject to Staff review at 

permitting and inspection during construction.  Staff recommends using shutter dogs or other decorative 

hardware with the fixed shutters.  The existing stucco window trim may be amended as proposed, in 

order to allow for the installation of the shutters, subject to staff review at permitting and inspection 

during construction. 

6) All existing accordion style shutters shall be removed from the structure. 

7) The garage doors shall have smaller simulated divided lights, if possible, in order to be compatible with 

the 6/6 windows.  Based on the drawings provided, staff recommends 12-18 lights, rather than 6, as 

shown. 

8) The decorative roof finials may be repaired, or replaced with a similar Regency-style appropriate roof 

finial, subject to Staff review at permitting. 

9) The stucco finish on the proposed addition shall match the existing smooth stucco finish on the existing 

structure.  If the entire structure needs to have the stucco replaced, the new stucco shall exactly replicate 

the existing stucco finish on the stucco.  The Applicant shall prepare a stucco sample, to be reviewed and 

approved by Staff, prior to commencing stucco work. 

10) All decorative stucco banding shall be repaired if possible.  If the banding needs to be replaced, it shall be 

replicated exactly in size, shape, profile, location, and configuration. 

11) All fencing, hardscape, and mechanical equipment shall comply with the Land Development Regulations. 

 

POTENTIAL MOTION:   

 

I MOVE TO APPROVE HRPB 16-00100236: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for exterior 

alterations and the construction of an addition for the subject building located at 204 North Lakeside Drive, with 

conditions as recommended by Staff, based upon the preponderance of competent substantial evidence. 

 

I MOVE TO DENY HRPB 16-00100236: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for exterior 

alterations and the construction of an addition for the subject building located at 204 North Lakeside Drive 

because the Applicant has not established by a preponderance of the evidence that the application is in 

compliance with the City of Lake Worth Land Development Regulations Section 23.5-4, the Secretary of the 

interiors Standards for the Rehabilitation of Historic Properties, and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100236 

204 North Lakeside Drive 

COA Application – Addition and Exterior Alterations 

Page 5 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Decision Criteria  

2. Application Photographs and Product Information 

3. Proposed Architectural Drawings 

4. Proposed Window Information 

 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: December 7, 2016 

 

TO: Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department of Community Sustainability 

 

SUBJECT:          HRPB Project Number 16-00100236: Consideration of a Certificate of 

Appropriateness (COA) for exterior alterations and an addition to the single-family 

structure located at 204 North Lakeside Drive; PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-036-0010.  The 

subject structure was constructed c.1978 and is a non-contributing resource within 

the Old Lucerne Local Historic District. 

 

HRPB Meeting Date: December 14, 2016 

  
 

Per Section 23.5-4k(1) of the historic preservation ordinance, the Board shall use the 

following criteria in making a determination: 

 

A.   What is the effect of the proposed work on the landmark or the property upon which such work 

is to be done?   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the proposed work on the property located at 204 N Lakeside 

Drive will have no adverse effect on the historic appearance or significance of the building. 

 

B.   What is the relationship between such work and other structures on the landmark site or other 

property in the historic district?   

Response: The proposed work will have no direct physical effect on any surrounding properties within 

the Old Lucerne Local Historic District.  

 

C.   To what extent will the historic, architectural, or archaeological significance, architectural style, 

design, arrangement, texture, materials and color of the landmark or the property be affected?    

Response: The Applicant is not proposing to replace any historically significant materials on the 

building. It is the analysis of Staff that the proposed addition and exterior alterations are compatible 

with the architectural style of the single-family residence and will not adversely affect the historic 

integrity of the original structure. 

 

D.   Would denial of a certificate of appropriateness deprive the property owner of reasonable 

beneficial use of his property?  

Response: No, the denial of this COA as submitted does not prevent the Applicant from potentially 

proposing other alterations to the home, nor would it make the building uninhabitable. 

 

E.   Are the applicant's plans technically feasible and capable of being carried out within a reasonable 

time?  

Response: Yes. 

 



2 

 

F.   Do the plans satisfy the applicable portions of the general criteria contained in the United States 

Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation then in effect or as they may be revised from 

time to time? The current version of the Secretary's Guidelines provides as follows: 

 

(1)   A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires minimal 

change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment.   

 Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed. 

 

(2)   This historic character of the property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic 

materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.   

Response: The Applicant is not removing any historic materials from the property.  The proposed 

changes will only slightly alter the main street-facing elevation, and are compatible with the Regency 

inspired architectural style.  The basic shape and form of the structure will not be affected by the 

addition. 

 

(3)   Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that 

create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural 

elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.  

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the addition will be compatible with the original structure, 

but will not add a false sense of historic development.  

 

(4) Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in their 

own right shall be retained and preserved.    

Response: The historically significant features of the building are being retained. 

 

(5)   Distinctive features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that 

characterize a historic property shall be preserved.   

Response: It is the opinion of Staff that no distinctive features, finishes, or examples of craftsmanship 

that characterize the property are being adversely affected by the scope of work proposed.  

 

(6)   Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced, wherever possible. In 

the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 

composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities.  

 

Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of 

features, substantiated by historical, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs 

or because the different architectural elements from other buildings or structures happen to be 

available for relocation.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(7)   Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials, 

shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the 

gentlest means possible.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(8)   Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. If such 

resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 



3 

 

 

(9)   New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction shall not destroy historic 

materials that characterize the property. The new construction shall be differentiated from the old 

and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic 

integrity of the property and its environment.   

Response: The proposed new addition meet this criterion.  The addition is compatible in size, massing, 

and scale.   

 

(10)   New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner 

that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic building and its 

environment would be unimpaired.   

Response: The proposed addition could be removed at a later date, with some changes to the main 

structure.   

 

G.   What are the effects of the requested change on those elements or features of the structure which 

served as the basis for its designation and will the requested changes cause the least possible adverse 

effect on those elements or features?   

Response: It is the opinion of Staff that the character of the property would not be adversely affected 

by the proposed project as submitted by the Applicant, as outlined above.  Staff has recommended 

Conditions of Approval to further increase the compatibility of the requested addition and exterior 

alterations. 

 

Section 23.5-4k(2). Additional guidelines for alterations. 

 

In approving or denying applications for certificates of appropriateness for alterations, the HRPB shall 

also consider the following additional guidelines:  

 

A. Is every reasonable effort being made to provide a compatible use for a property that requires 

minimal alteration of the building, structure or site and its environment, or to use the property for its 

originally intended purpose?  

Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed.  

 

B. Are the distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, structure or site and its 

environment being destroyed? The removal or alteration of any historic material or distinctive 

architectural features shall be avoided whenever possible.  

Response: No. 

 

C. When a certificate of appropriateness is requested to replace windows or doors, the HRPB shall 

permit the property owner's original design when the HRPB's alternative design would result in an 

increase in cost of thirty (30) percent above the owner's original cost. The owner shall be required to 

demonstrate to the HRPB that:  

(1) The work to be performed will conform to the original door and window openings of the structure; 

and 

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(2) That the replacement windows or doors with less expensive materials will achieve a savings in 

excess of thirty (30) percent over historically compatible materials otherwise required by this code.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 













































Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 A
N

D
A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

 G
RO

UP
, I

N
C

.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

D
E 

DR
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0

Building Codes And Zoning Requirements
At the time of creation, these plans were designed to meet the requirements of a nationally recognized
model building code in effect where these plans were produced. Because of the great differences in
geography and climate throughout the United States each state, county and municipality has its own
building codes, zone requirements, ordinances and building regulations. These plans may need to be
modified and additional drawings and details may need to be added to comply with your local conditions,
requirements, and a wide range of other matters.All of our plans can be adapted to the local building codes
and requirements. It is the responsibility of the purchaser and/or builder of each plan to see that the structure
is built in strict compliance with the governing municipal codes (city, county, state and federal). In addition
to the building plans that you order, you will also need a site plan that shows where the house is going to be
located on the lot. There are some areas of the country that have very strict engineering codes. If you are
building in this type of area, it is possible that you will need to hire a local engineer to analyze the house and
provide additional drawings and calculations that may be required by your building department.
Notice Duty Of Cooperation
Our firm assumes no liability for any home constructed from these plans. Only qualified Designers, Architects,
Contractors or Structural Engineers should attempt to modify any portion of these plans. It is the sole
responsibility of the purchaser to obtain any and all structural analysis, engineering and specifications that
are required where the structure is to be built. Written dimensions on these drawings should have
precedence over scaled dimensions; the contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions and
conditions on the job.
Architectural And Engineering Seals
Some cities and states are now requiring that a licensed architect or engineer review and "seal" these plans,
or officially approve them prior to construction. In addition, you may need to obtain permits or inspections
from your local governments before and in the course of construction. Prior to using these plans, we strongly
advise that you consult a licensed architect or engineer, as well as consult with your local building official
before applying for any permit or before starting any construction related to these plans. We authorize the
use of these plans on the express condition that you strictly comply with all local building codes, zoning
requirements and other applicable laws, regulations, ordinances and requirements.
License Agreement
By the purchase of our plans, customers are granted a limited license to use the plans for the construction of
only one home. It is strictly prohibited to reproduce, sell, modify, trace, redraw or reuse the plans or designs
without the written permission from the copyright owner. This limited license also applies to all other
reproducible media. All orders, once placed, are final. No refunds or exchanges will be granted.
Terms And Conditions
It is not permitted to copy any part of our original designs or reproduce them in any way or by any means,
unless you have purchased reproducible plans, which clearly indicate your right to copy or duplicate these
plans. We do not authorize them to be sold to another person or third party. We only authorize the use of
your chosen design as an aid in the construction of one single-family home. You may not use this design or
these plans to build a second or multiple dwellings without purchasing another set of plans or paying
additional design fees.
Terms And Conditions - Ownership and Use of Documents
The Architect shall have the right to include representations of the Design of Project, including, but not limited
to, photographs, plans, drawings, artistic renderings, digital images, and/or videotape, and/or such other
similar demonstrative images of the exterior and interior of the subject project, among the Architect's
promotional, marketing, advertising, and/or professional materials (collectively, "marketing materials"). The
Architect's marketing materials shall not include any image and/or description of the Client's confidential or
proprietary information and/or property.
The Architect shall be permitted to post an appropriate job site sign, which sign may include the Architect's
name, business address, business telephone number, and/or such other similar business related information,
within the boundary of the subject property, beginning with the issuance of the permit through the
commencement date of issuance of a certificate of occupancy.
Copyright Laws - Infringement Penalty
These designs and plans are protected under the terms of United States Copyright Law and may not be
copied or reproduced in any way by any means. All floor plans, renderings and other media advertised are
the exclusive property of  Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A. Any willful infringement to Copyright Laws by any
individual may be subject to severe penalties, actual damages, profit made, and attorneys fees of the owner
of the copyright.
General Disclaimer
Our architects have taken substantial care and effort to create these plans. However, because the
architects cannot provide on-site consultation, supervision and control over actual construction, and
because of the great variances in local building requirements, building practices and soil, seismic, weather
and other conditions, we cannot assume any responsibility or liability or make any warranty, express or
implied, with respect to the content or use of these plans.
Disclaimer Of Warranties
You agree that use of the site is at your sole risk. The site is provided on an "as is" and "as available" basis.
Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A., its affiliates, officers, employees, agents and licensors cannot and do not
imply or warrant the accuracy, completeness, currentness, non-infringement, merchantability, or fitness for a
particular purpose of the information or applications available through the service.
You further agree that you will use any data or information obtained through this site at your own discretion
and risk. You will be solely responsible for any damage to your computer system or loss of data that results
from the download of such material or data.
Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A., its affiliates, officers, employees, agents and licensors make no warranty
regarding any goods or services referred to, advertised on, or obtained through our sites, other than those
specifically expressed by Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A.,
Limitation Of Liability
Under no circumstances shall Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A., or its affiliates, officers, employees, agents, or
licensors be liable to you or anyone else for any damages arising out of use of the services, including, without
limitation, liability for consequential, special, incidental, indirect, or similar damages. You also agree that the
liability of Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A., its affiliates, officers, employees, agents and licensors, if any,
arising out of any kind of legal claim in any way connected to the service shall not exceed the amount you
paid for the service. Because some states do not allow the exclusion or limitation of certain categories of
damages, the above limitation may not apply to you. In such states, the liability of Sandra Puerta
Architecture, P.A., its affiliates, officers, employees, agents and licensors is limited to the fullest extent
permitted by such state law.
Applicable Law
This site is created and controlled by Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A., in the State of Florida. As such, the laws
of the State of Florida will govern these disclaimers, terms and conditions, without giving effect to any
principles of conflicts of laws. Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A. reserves the right to make changes to its site
and these disclaimers, terms and conditions at any time. You hereby irrevocably and unconditionally consent
to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Florida, and of the United States of America
located in Broward County, Florida for any disputes arising out of or relating to use of or purchase made
through Sandra Puerta Architecture, P.A., and agree not to commence any litigation relating thereto except
in such courts, waive any objection to the laying of venue of any such litigation in the in Broward County,
Florida courts and agree not to plead or claim in any court that such litigation brought therein has been
brought in an inconvenient forum.
Dispute Resolution
In the unlikely event that any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this User Agreement or our
services shall be settled by binding arbitration in accordance with the commercial arbitration rules of the
American Arbitration Association. Any such controversy or claim shall be arbitrated on an individual basis and
shall not be consolidated in any arbitration with any claim or controversy of any other party. The arbitration
shall be conducted in Broward County, Florida, and judgment on the arbitration award may be entered into
any court having jurisdiction thereof. Either you or we may seek any interim or preliminary relief from a court
of competent jurisdiction in Broward County, Florida, necessary to protect the rights or property of you or us
pending the completion of arbitration.
Miscellaneous
In the event that any provision of the User Agreement conflicts with the law under which the User Agreement
is to be construed or if any provision is held invalid by a court with jurisdiction over the parties to the User
Agreement, such provision will be restated to reflect as nearly as possible the original intentions of the parties
in accordance with applicable law, and the remainder of this User Agreement will remain in full force and
effect. If either party fails to insist upon or enforce strict performance by the other party of any provision of
the User Agreement, or to exercise any right under the User Agreement, such a failure will not be construed
as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of such party's right to assert or rely upon any such provision or
right in that or any other instance. That is, all provisions and rights will remain in full force and effect.

TERMS OF USE & LICENSE AGREEMENT

CVR

Cover and
Project

Information

VICINITY MAP

SATELLITE AERIAL

EXISTING FRONTAGE

(F.B.C. 2014 ASCE-7-10 EXP. 'C')
ENCLOSED                                            170 MPH (3 SEC. GUST)
HEIGHT                                                   15  FEET

IMPORTANCE FACTOR                         1.0
q = 36.3 PSF VELOCITY PRESSURE

BUILDING CLASSIFICATION                   IIIB

BUILDING CODES                                  2014 F.B.C.

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES

WINDOWS &
DOORS

ROOF

POS  +42.9 P.S.F.
           NEG  -57.3 P.S.F.

         WORST CASE ALL OPENINGS

FIELD ZONE
3' EDGE ZONE
3' x 3' CORNERS

-42.8 PSF
-71.9 PSF
-108.2 PSF

1
2
3

SCOPE OF WORK

SHEET INDEX

ALL WORK TO BE PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE F.B.C. 2014
EDITION WITH ALL AMENDMENTS, THE
N.E.C., THE ZONING ORDINANCES IN
THE CITY OF JURISDICTION AND ALL

APPLICABLE CODES AND STANDARDS.

PROJECT TEAM

OWNER

ARCHITECT
SANDRA PUERTA, AR 95385
6476 Kirsten Way
Lake Worth, FL 33467
Voice | 561.712.8898

Fax | 561.828.2645
Email | sandra@thearchitectgroup.com

GILBERT A RODRIGUEZ

PROPERTY INFORMATION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
TOWN OF LAKE WORTH LT 1 & S 1/2 OF LT
2 BLK 36

MUNICIPALITY
LAKE WORTH

PARCEL CONTROL NUMBER
38 - 43 - 44 - 21-15 - 036 - 0010

SUBDIVISION
-----------------

LAND USE CODE
0100 - SINGLE FAMILY

ZONING CODE

LOCATION ADDRESS
204 N LAKESIDE DR

CLASSIFICATION OF WORK
REMODELING

ALL WORK TO BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE F.B.C. 2014 EDITION WITH ALL AMENDMENTS, THE N.E.C.,
THE ZONING ORDINANCES IN THE CITY OF JURISDICTION AND ALL APPLICABLE CODES AND STANDARDS.

(F.B.C. 2014 ASCE-7-10 EXP. 'C')

q = 36.3 PSF VELOCITY PRESSURE

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION           R-3| RESIDENTIAL

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES

SCOPE OF WORK

SFR - Single Family Residential
( 38-LAKE WORTH )

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ANY
CONDITION AND NOTIFY ALL
RESPONSIBLE PARTIES IF THERE
ARE ANY DISCREPANCIES. THE

ARCHITECT ASSUMES NO
RESPONSIBILITY.

204 NORTH LAKESIDE DR.
LAKE WORTH FL 33460

LAKE WORTH, FL

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

ZONING DEPARTMENT

1. NEW INTERIOR RENOVATION AND
ADDITIONAS PER PLANS.

2. ALL M.E.P. WORK AS PER PLANS.
3. SEE PLANS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

AREA CALCULATIONS
EXISTING SQUARE FOOTAGE           2 ,614 S.F.
EXISTING UNDER AIR  1,787 S.F.
EXISTING NOT UNDER AIR    827 S.F.
(TO BE TRANSFORMED INTO UNDER AIR)

PROPOSED SQUARE FOOTAGE
HOME ADDITION (under air)         137 S.F.
i

TOTAL ADDITION UNDER AIR 137 S.F.
TOTAL ADDITION NOT UNDER AIR    0 S.F.

i

NEW TOTAL UNDER AIR 1,924 S.F.
NEW TOTAL NOT UNDER AIR   827S.F.

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE 2,751 S.F.

CVR COVER SHEET
A-0 GENERAL NOTES + SPECIFICATIONS
SP-1 SITE PLAN
SP-2 PROPOSED SITE PLAN
A-1 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN
A-2.1 EXISTING ELEVATIONS
A-2.2 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
1900 2ND AVE N
Lake Worth, FL 33461
Voice | 561.586.1652

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
1900 2ND AVE N
Lake Worth, FL 33461
Voice | 561.586.1652



PRE-FABRICATED WOOD TRUSSES
TRUSS MANUFACTURER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DESIGN AND FABRICATION OF TRUSSES, GIRDERS, AND
THEIR CONNECTIONS TO EACH OTHER. DESIGN FOR BRACING OF INDIVIDUAL TRUSS OR GIRDER
MEMBERS TO RESIST LATERAL BUCKLING UNDER GRAVITY OR WIND LOADS IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
TRUSS MANUFACTURER.

(DELEGATED ENGINEERING SHOP DRAWINGS REQUIRED)
THE BUILDING CODE REQUIRES THE ENGINEER-OF-RECORD TO INCLUDE WITH ALL RECORD PLANS
COMPLETE TRUSS FRAMING PLANS, INCLUDING ALL CONNECTIONS  AND LOADING DATA, TO THE
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR PERMIT.  THE TRUSS DESIGN DELEGATED ENGINEER MUST FOLLOW THE
LAYOUT OF THE TRUSSES AND GIRDER- TRUSSES, AS SHOWN ON THE STRUCTURAL FRAMING PLANS.
DESIGNED AND FABRICATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH "NATIONAL DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS FOR STRESS
GRADE LUMBER AND ITS FASTENERS" BY NFPA (LATEST EDITION)
TRUSSES SHALL BE DESIGNED, SIGNED AND SEALED BY A FLORIDA REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEER, WHO MAY BE ASSIGNED AS A DELEGATED ENGINEER FOR THE CONTRACTOR.  THE
DELEGATED ENGINEER SHALL DESIGN AND INDICATE ON THE SHOP DRAWINGS ALL TRUSS
COMPONENTS, TEMPORARY BRACING, BRIDGING, HARDWARE, METAL HANGERS, ANCHORS AND
METAL SHAPES AS REQUIRED BY DESIGN OR AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS.  ALL METAL PARTS ARE TO BE
GALVANIZED.
SHOP DRAWINGS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CURRENT BUILDING CODES,  REGARDING MODIFICATION
OF THE FRAMING (FROM THE ONE SHOWN ON THE  STRUCTURAL PLANS), INDICATING ALL PERMANENT
BRACING (AS SHOWN ON THE STRUCTURAL PLANS) AND INDIVIDUAL MEMBER BRACING.
THE STRUCTURAL PLANS INDICATE ALL THE REQUIRED LATERAL PERMANENT BRIDGING, AS
RECOMMENDED BY THE "TRUSS PLATE INSTITUTE".  TRUSS DESIGNER ENGINEER SHALL PROVIDE
INFORMATION AND SHOW ON PLAN, ALL LATERAL BRACING OF ANY TRUSS INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS, AS
REQUIRED BY TRUSS DESIGN.
TRUSSES SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH OUT OF PLUMB AND OUT OF PLANE TOLERANCES, AS PER THE "TRUSS
PLATE INSTITUTE" (SHOWN ON THE ROOF PLAN).  ANY TRUSS EXCEEDING THE SPECIFIED TOLERANCE
MUST BE REALIGNED OR REPLACED.
 INSTALLATION OF TRUSSES LONGER THAN 35 FT. OR HIGHER THAN 6 FT. SHALL BE MADE UNDER THE
DIRECT SUPERVISION OF A LICENSED BUILDING OR GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR A LICENSED
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER OR ARCHITECT.

PLYWOOD ROOF DIAPHRAGM:
ROOF DIAPHRAGM SHALL COMPLY WITH THE DESIGN RECOMMENDATIONS OF "A.P.A.
DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION GUIDE - DIAPHRAGMS".
PLYWOOD ROOF DECKING SHALL BE 19/32" MINIMUM THICKNESS, "CDX" TYPE  AND SHALL BE
CONTINUOUS OVER TWO OR MORE SPANS, WITH FACE GRAIN PERPENDICULAR TO THE SUPPORTS.
CONNECT PLYWOOD DIAPHRAGM TO STRUCTURE WITH 10d GALV. NAILS, SPACED AT 6" O.C. MAX.  AT
SUPPORTED EDGES AND AT 6" O.C. ALONG THE INTERMEDIATE SUPPORTS.
GABLE ENDS NAIL SPACING SHALL BE 4" ON CENTERS MAXIMUM. STRUCTURAL WOOD:
TO CONFORM TO RULES OF THE MANUFACTURER'S ASSOCIATION UNDER WHOSE RULES THE LUMBER IS
PRODUCED.  (SEE SUPPLIER'S SPECIFICATIONS).
TO BE AIR DRIED, WELL SEASONED AND GRADE MARKED AT MILL.
TO BE NO. 2 SOUTHERN PINE, UTILITY GRADE DOUGLAS FIR OR WEST COAST HEMLOCK.
 ALL STRUCTURAL WOOD TO BE SURFACED FOUR (4) SIDES (S-4-S) WITH A MINIMUM FIBER STRESS IN
BENDING OF 1,200 P.S.I. AND A MAXIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT OF 19 PERCENT.
ALL LUMBER AND PLYWOOD IN CONTACT WITH CONCRETE, STUCCO, MASONRY OR OTHER
CEMENTITIOUS MATERIALS SHALL BE TREATED TO COMPLY WITH AWPA STANDARD LP-2.
STORE ALL LUMBER ABOVE GRADE OR FLOOR.  STACK TO ALLOW PROPER AIR CIRCULATION AND
PROTECT FROM WETTING WITH SUITABLE COVER.

 OWNER SHALL APPROVE ALL MATERIAL AND FINISH SAMPLES ALONG WITH ALL EQUIPMENT
SPECIFICATIONS PRIOR TO ORDERING AND INSTALLATION.  PROVIDE THRERSHOLD AND
WEATHERSTRIPPING AT ALL EXTERIOR DOORS.

CONCRETE SLABS ON GRADE:
ALL INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR SLABS AND WALKWAYS AS SHOWN ON THE STRUCTURAL OR
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS, SHALL BE FOUR INCHES THICK MINIMUM REINFORCED WITH 6 X 6 - W1.4 X W1.4
WELDED WIRE FABRIC (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED).
ALL SLABS ON GRADE TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LATEST A.C.I - "GUIDE FOR
CONCRETE FLOOR AND SLAB CONSTRUCTION" (A.C.I. - 302.1R).
JOINTS SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ALL INTERIOR SLABS ON GRADE AT COLUMN CENTER-LINES DIVIDING THE
SLAB INTO SQUARE PANELS NOT TO EXCEED 20 X 20 FT. IN SIZE.  CAST SLAB IN LONG ALTERNATE STRIPS.
PROVIDE A CONTRACTION JOINT BETWEEN EACH STRIP.  SEE PLAN FOR SAW-CUT, CONTRACTION AND
ISOLATION JOINT DETAILS.
PROVIDE SAW-CUT JOINTS AT ALL SIDEWALKS AT A MAXIMUM SPACING OF FIVE FEET ON CENTERS AND
ISOLATION JOINTS AT 20 FEET O.C. (U.O.N.).
FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN LIFTS NOT EXCEEDING 12" AND COMPACTED TO 95 % MODIFIED
PROCTOR (ASTM D-1557) WITHIN A DISTANCE OF 3 FEET BEYOND ALL FOOTING EDGES.  TAKE AT LEAST
ONE DENSITY TEST FOR EACH 1,600 SQ.FT. OF AREA AND 12" BELOW SURFACE.  SEND RESULTS OF THE
TEST TO OWNER, ARCHITECT AND ENGINEER. CONCRETE AND REINFORCING:
ALL REINFORCING TO BE NEW BILLET STEEL CONFORMING TO THE LATEST A.S.T.M. A-615 GRADE 60,
FABRICATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH C.R.S.I.  MANUAL OF STANDARD PRACTICE AND PLACED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH A.C.I. 315 AND C.R.S.I. MANUAL OF STANDARD PRACTICE.
COLUMN REINFORCEMENT:  DOWELS TO BE SAME SIZE AND NUMBER AS VERTICAL REBARS ABOVE.  LAP
36 BAR DIAMETER OR MINIMUM OF 18 INCHES, U.O.N.  PROVIDE RIGID TEMPLETS FOR DOWEL
LOCATION.  PROVIDE STANDARD HOOKS AT TOP OF ALL VERTICAL REINFORCEMENT AT
NONCONTINUOUS COLUMNS (U.O.N.).
ALL DOWELS FOR COLUMNS SHALL BE SECURED IN POSITION PRIOR TO CONCRETING.  PUSHING THE
DOWELS INTO POSITION IN WET CONCRETE IS NOT PERMITTED.
BEAM REINFORCEMENT: LAPPED 36 BAR DIAMETER OR MINIMUM 18 INCHES (SEE BEAM DIAGRAM ON
PLAN).  BOTTOM BARS SPLICED ONLY AT SUPPORTS, TOP BARS SPLICED ONLY AT MID-SPAN.  ALL TOP
BARS HOOKED AT NONCONTINUOUS EDGES (U.O.N.).  ALL HOOKS TO BE STANDARD 90 DEGREE HOOKS
AS REQUIRED (U.O.N.).
ADDED REINFORCEMENT:  PROVIDE ADDITIONAL CORNER BARS BENT 36 INCHES MINIMUM EACH WAY
AT "L" AND "T" CORNERS IN OUTER FACES OF ALL BEAMS TO MATCH ALL HORIZONTAL BAR (TOP,
BOTTOM AND INTERMEDIATE REBARS). 10.  SEE STRUCTURAL PLANS  FOR MIN. SIZE CONCRETE TIE BEAM
REQUIREMENTS.

FIREPLACE NOTES:
A. FIREBOX, SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL LOCAL CODES, RULES & REGULATIONS  HAVING
JURISDICTION.
B.  CLEAR FIREPLACE OPENING SHALL BE 40x29x16" DEEP.
C.  PROVIDE 12"x12" FLUE LINING
D.  PROVIDE FIREBRICK INNER HEARTH & LINING
E.  MASONRY CHIMNEY (SEE ELEVATIONS) TOP OF FLUE TO BE 24" ABOVE. THE HIGHEST POINT 10'-0"
AWAY.
F.  PROVIDE 24" DEEP TILED OUTER HEARTH, 12" ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR & MIN. 16" WIDER THAN
FIREPLACE OPENING
G.  PROVIDE CAST IRON DAMPER.
H.  FIREPLACE AND MATERIALS TO BE U.L. RATED AND APPROVED.
I.  ALL WOOD BEAMS, JOISTS, AND STUDS SHALL BE TRIMMED AWAY FROM FIREPLACES.  HEADERS
SUPPORTING TRIMMER ARCHES AT FIREPLACES SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN TWENTY INCHES FROM THE
FACE OF THE CHIMNEY BREAST.  TRIMMERS SHALL BE NOT LESS THE SIX INCHES FROM THE  INSIDE FACE
OF THE NEAREST FLUE LINING
J.  WOODWORK SHALL NOT BE PLACED WITHIN SIX INCHES OF A FIREPLACE OPENING.  WOODWORK
ABV AND PROJECTING MORE THAN ONE AND ONE-HALF INCH FROM A FIREPLACE OPENING SHALL
NOT BE  PLACED LESS THAN TWELVE INCHES FROM THE TOP OF A FIREPLACE OPENING.
K.  PROVIDE A U.L. RATED AND APPROVED CHIMNEY CAP W/ INTEGRAL BUILT-IN SPARK  ARRESTER AND
RAIN CAP AND BASE FLASHING.

POST PERMANENT SIGN WITH 1/2" LETTERS ON THE INSIDE FACE OF ANY ONE DOOR TO
OUTSIDE: "DO  NOT  OPERATE  ENGINES  WITH  DOORS  CLOSED, CARBON MONOXIDE
EMISSION."

GARAGE NOTES
PARTITIONS BETWEEN GARAGE AND LIVING AREAS WITH R-11 INSULATION. NO. 25 GAUGE  " GYPSUM
WALLBOARD APPLIED  CHANNEL-SHAPED STUDS @ 16" O/C WITH ONE FULL LENGTH LAYER OF
VERTICALLY, ATTACHED WITH 1" LONG NO. 6 DRYWALL SCREWS TO EACH SIDE. SCREWS ARE 8" O/C
AROUND PERIMETER AND AT 12" O/C ON THE INTERMEDIATE STUD.

CALCULATIONS FOR VENTILATION:
BASED ON A .015  STATIC PRESSURE, 60  SQUARE INCHES FOR  EACH CAR IN A  DWELLING WILL
PROVIDE THE  NECESSARY 100 Cfm  PER CAR W/ A 7.5  Mph WIND.
VELOCITY @  7.5 mph = 7.5 x 5280 /  60 = 660 FPM. FREE  CFM = 60/144 x 660 -  275 Cfm FREE FLOW.

WINDOW SAFEGUARD NOTE
WHERE THERE IS A DROP OF MORE THAN 4 FEET ON THE FAR SIDE OF SUCH WINDOWS AND THE SILL IS
LESS THAN 36 INCH ABOVE THE NEAR SIDE WALKING SURFACE, SAFEGUARDS SHALL BE PROVIDED TO
PREVENT THE FALL OF PERSONS WHEN SUCH WINDOWS ARE OPEN.

PLUMBING NOTES
FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT REQUIRED FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE SOIL, WASTE,
VENT, DOMESTIC WATER HEATERS, PLUMBING FIXTURES AND ALL OTHER SYSTEMS AS INDICATED ON THE
DRAWINGS.
ALL WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL BE IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH ALL LOCAL CODES, RULES AND
ORDINANCES HAVING JURISDICTION.
DRAWINGS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC.  DO NOT SCALE FOR THE EXACT LOCATION OF FIXTURES, PIPING,
EQUIPMENT, ETC. PLUMBING CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL SPACE CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS AT
JOB SITE PRIOR TO FABRICATION AND INSTALLATION OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT.
EXTEND SERVICE TO WATER METER. PROVIDE WATER METER AND SHUTOFF VALVE IN VALVE BOX
OUTSIDE BUILDING. CONSULT ARCHITECT FOR LOCATION. LOCATIONS WHERE PIPES PENETRATE WALLS,
FLOORS, AND CEILINGS SHALL BE WATERTIGHT. SANITARY PIPES SHALL BE OF HUBLESS CAST IRON OR
PVC (SCHEDULE 40) AS APPROVED BY BUILDING OFFICIAL.
CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY AT SITE LOCATION, ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS, ELEVATIONS AND SIZE OF
EXISTING MAINS, WATER AND SEWER FOR CONNECTION OF NEW SERVICES BEFORE INSTALLATION OF
ANY PIPING.
ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A LICENSED PLUMBING CONTRACTOR, IN A FIRST-CLASS
WORKMANLIKE MANNER AND MAKE THE COMPLETED SYSTEM FULLY OPERATIVE. ALL WORK SHALL BE
COORDINATED WITH OTHER TRADES TO AVOID INTERFERENCE WITH THE PROCESS OF CONSTRUCTION.
ALL REQUIRED INSURANCE SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR PROTECTION AGAINST PUBLIC LIABILITY AND
PROPERTY DAMAGE FOR THE DURATION OF THE WORK.
ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE NEW AND SHALL BEAR UNDERWRITERS' AND UNION LABELS WHERE REQUIRED.
ALL EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL AS REQUIRED FOR THIS PHASE OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PART OF
THIS CONTRACT. UNDERGROUND METAL PIPING SHALL BE PROTECTED WITH A COAT OF BITUMINOUS
COMPOUND BEFORE COVERING. "BITUMASTIC" OR EQUAL. ALL UNDERGROUND SOIL AND WASTE
PIPING SHALL BE SCHEDULE 40 P.V.C. OR SERVICE WEIGHT CAST IRON WITH MEDIUM WEIGHTS CAST
IRON FITTINGS.  ALL JOINTS BELOW SLAB TO BE MADE WITH OAKUM AND PURE VIRGIN LEAD. SOIL,
WASTE AND VENT PIPING ABOVE SLAB TO BE SAME AS SPECIFIED FOR BELOW SLAB EXCEPT THAT THE
CONTRACTOR MAY AT HIS OPTION USE NO-HUM PIPE AND FITTINGS IF ACCEPTABLE BY LOCAL
AUTHORITIES.
ISOLATE COPPER PIPE FROM HANGER OR SUPPORT WITH ISOLATOR PAD, SUPER STRUT MODEL C/15/16
(OR EQUIVALENT) OR HAIR FELT LINING. HANGERS FOR COPPER PIPING SHALL BE COPPER OR COPPER
PLATED.

ALL PIPING SHALL BE SUPPORTED IN APPROVED MANNER FROM BUILDING STRUCTURE.  HANGERS FOR
COPPER PIPING SHALL BE COPPER OR COPPER PLATED.
ALL RATED FLOOR AND WALL PENETRATIONS (NO PVC) SHALL HAVE FIRE, SMOKE, AND WATER STOPS BY
FILLING VOIDS BETWEEN PIPE AND WALL/FLOOR SLEEVES WITH FIRE RATED FOAM, CHASE TECHNOLOGY
CORP. CIC PR 855 OR 3M CP-25 CAULKING OR 303 PUTTY TO ACHIEVE THE SAME FIRE RATING AS WALLS
OR FLOORS.
LOCATIONS WHERE PIPES PENETRATE WALLS, FLOORS AND CEILINGS SHALL BE WATERTIGHT.
CONDENSATE DRAIN PIPES SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3/4" PVC (SCHEDULE 40) WITH TRAPS, INSULATED
WITH 1/2" ARMAFLEX, AND TERMINATED 6" ABOVE GRADE OUTSIDE OF THE BUILDING. FURNISH AND
INSTALL PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE LINE AND TERMINATE AT A LOCATION TO PROVIDE READY, VISUAL
INDICATION FLOW. COPPER WATER LINES RUNNING UNDER SLAB SHALL BE PROTECTED BY A MINIMUM
OF 12 INCHES OF EARTH COVER, 1 INCH AMAFLEX (HOT WATER ONLY) AND SLEEVED 12 INCH BELOW
SLAB TO 12 INCHES ABOVE SLAB.
VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS WITH STRUCTURE PRIOR TO ANY FABRICATION OR INSTALLATION.
ALL FIXTURES SHALL BE PROTECTED AGAINST WATER HAMMER WITH APPROVED AIR CHAMBERS OR
SHOCK ABSORBERS. PROVIDE CONTROL VALVES TO ALL MAINS ENTERING THE BUILDING, RISERS,
BRANCHES, GROUP OF FIXTURES, AND TO EACH PIECE OF EQUIPMENT.
PROVIDE FULLY ACCESSIBLE CLEANOUTS ON SANITARY AND ANY WASTE PIPING AT BOTTOM OF
STACKS. CLEANOUTS LOCATION AND SIZES ON HORIZONTAL LINES SHALL BE ACCORDING TO CODE.
VENT LINES TO EXTEND 6" MINIMUM ABOVE ROOF AND FLASH WITH LEAD. PROVIDE AIR CHAMBERS AND
SHUT OFF VALVES FOR ALL WATER SUPPLY PIPING AT FIXTURES. PROVIDE VACUUM BREAKER AND SHUT
OFF VALVE ON ALL HOSE BIBBS.
ALL HOSE BIBS SHALL BE FURNISHED WITH BACKFLOW PREVENTERS AND MOUNTED 26" ABOVE GRADE.
SANITARY PLUMBING PIPING TO HAVE MIN. 1/8" PER FT. PITCH AT ALL HORIZ. RUNS PROVIDE CLEANOUTS
AT THE BASE OF WASTE STACKS.
PROVIDE 1/4" WATER SERVICE TO REFRIGERATOR.
ALL FIXTURES SHALL COMPLY WITH MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF CONSUMPTION, INSTALL ANTI-SCALD
VALVES AS REQUIRED.
LAVATORY      2.5 GPM
SHOWER HEAD  2.5 GPM @ 80 PSI
WATER CLOSET 1.6 GAL. PER FLUSH
SINK FAUCET   2.5 GPM @ 60 PSI
TEST ALL WATER PIPING UNDER A 150 PSI HYDROSTATIC TEST FOR A MINIMUM PERIOD OF TWO HOURS.

SECURITY NOTES
ALL LOCKS ON EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL RESIST A FORCE OF 300 # APPLIED IN ANY MOVABLE
DIRECTION. ALL EXTERIOR LOCKS SHALL BE SINGLE CYLINDER WITH 1" THROW FOR 1 3/4" SOLID CORE
DOOR. ALL SINGLE EXTERIOR SWING DOORS SHALL HAVE A KEY OPERATED LOCK, OPERABLE FROM
EXTERIOR WITH A MINIMUM 6000 POSSIBLE KEY CHANGES.  KEY ON KNOB LOCKS SHALL HAVE AN
AUXILIARY DEAD BOLT WITH HARDENED BOLT OR WITH INSERT. EXTERIOR SWING DOORS SHALL BE SOLID
CORE NOT LESS THAN 1 3/4" THICK. FRONT MAIN ENTRANCE DOORS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH VISION
SCOPE OR VISION PANEL. HINGES ON OUT SWINGING EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL HAVE NON-EXPOSED
SCREWS AND NON-REMOVABLE PINS. SINGLE SWING EXTERIOR DOORS CONNECTING LIVING AREAS
WITH GARAGE AREAS SHALL BE SOLID CORE 1 3/4" THICK AND SHALL BE SECURED WITH A LATCH AND
SINGLE BOLT WITH ONE INCH MIN.  THROW OR A COMBINATION OF DEAD BOLT AND DEAD LATCH SETS
AND AN AUTOMATIC DOOR CLOSER. ALL GLASS IN EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL COMPLY WITH ANSI 279.1
ALL WINDOWS (OPERABLE) SHALL WITHSTAND A FORCE OF 150# IN ANY OPERABLE DIRECTION. SLIDING
GLASS DOORS AND WINDOWS SHALL BE INSTALLED AND CONSTRUCTED SO THAT NO PANEL CAN BE
LIFTED FROM TRACKS  POSITION AND SHALL COMPLY WITH THE A.A.MA.A STANDARDS FOR FORCED
ENTRY RESISTANCE A.A.M.A. 1303-3. SLIDING GLASS DOORS SHALL HAVE DEAD BOLT OR PIN SYSTEM
NOT REMOVABLE FROM THE OUTSIDE AT THE JAMB AND SILL. INTERIOR DOORS TO HAVE CYLINDRICAL
TYPE LOCK SETS WITH PRIVACY LOCK BY INSIDE PUSH BUTTON WHICH AUTOMATICALLY OPENS BY TURN
OR CLOSING ACCORDING TO FED. SPEC. #160 AND 1511. OVERHEAD DOORS SHALL BE PROVIDED
WITH MULTIPLE POINT LOCKS OR BE LOCKED AT MORE THAN ONE POINT WITH HARDENED BOLTS WITH
INSERTS ENGAGING AT LEAST TWO OPPOSITE POINTS A MIN. OF 5/8".

ELECTRICAL NOTES
THE DRAWINGS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC AND INDICATE THE GENERAL ARRANGEMENT OF THE ELECTRICAL
WORK. ANY DISCREPANCIES ON THE  DOCUMENTS SHALL BE CALLED TO  ARCHITECT ATTENTION PRIOR
TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.  DO NOT SCALE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS. ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE AND ALL CODES,
REGULATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS HAVING JURISDICTIONS. DISCONNECT SWITCHES SHALL BE H.P.
RATED, HEAVY-DUTY, QUICK-MADE, QUICK-BREAK ENCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY EXPOSURE. OUTLET
BOXES SHALL BE PRESSED STEEL IN DRY LOCATIONS, CAST ALLOY WITH THREADED HUBS IN WET AND
DAMP LOCATIONS AND SPECIAL ENCLOSURES FOR OTHER CLASSIFIED LOCATIONS. ELECTRICAL
SYSTEM SHALL BE GROUNDED.  PROVIDE PROPER SIZE AND TYPE OF PROTECTION DEVICES TO MATCH
EQUIPMENT BEING SERVED. LOAD DATA IS BASED ON INFORMATION GIVEN TO ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
AT TIME OF DESIGN.  VERIFY ALL EQUIPMENT AND PANEL SIZES PRIOR TO ORDERING. ALL MATERIALS
SHALL BE NEW AND BEAR U.L. AND UNION LABELS, WHERE APPLICABLE. ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE BY
A LICENSED ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR IN A FIRST CLASS WORKMANLIKE MANNER.  THE COMPLETED
SYSTEM SHALL BE FULLY OPERATIVE AND ACCEPTABLE TO THE ENGINEER/ARCHITECT. ALL WORK SHALL
BE COORDINATED WITH OTHER TRADES TO AVOID INTERFERENCE WITH PROGRESS OF CONSTRUCTION.
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE REQUIRED INSURANCE FOR THE PROTECTION AGAINST PUBLIC LIABILITY
AND PROPERTY DAMAGE FOR THE DURATION OF THE WORK. CIRCUITS SHOWN ON PLANS ARE TO
DETERMINE LOAD DATA AND PANEL SIZES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE CIRCUITS AND
REQUIRED ROUTING OF CONDUITS TO SUIT JOB CONDITIONS AND BALANCE LOADS. FURNISH AND
INSTALL FIXTURES AS CALLED FOR ON PLANS OR AS SELECTED BY OWNER. THE ELECTRICAL
CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL H.V.A.C. EQUIPMENT AND THEIR
GIVEN LOAD WITH THE MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR BEFORE ROUGHING-IN FOR PROPER POWER AND
WIRING CONTROL LAYOUT AND INSTALLATION.  ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE GIVEN AND
ACTUAL H.V.A.C. LOADS SHALL BE CORRECTED BEFORE ROUGHING IN. GROUND-FAULT CIRCUIT
PROTECTION; ALL 120V SINGLE PHASE, 15 AND 20 AMP OUTLETS INSTALLED OUTDOORS, BATHROOMS
AND GARAGE SHALL HAVE GROUND-FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER CIRCUIT BREAKER OR RECEPTACLES.
ALL BREAKERS SHALL HAVE 10,000 A.I.C. MINIMUM, U.O.N. INSTALL FACILITIES FOR TEMPORARY POWER
FOR CONSTRUCTION AS REQUIRED. ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER/ARCHITECT IN
WRITING OF ANY CONFLICT AND/OR DISCREPANCIES FOUND WITH WORK AS SHOWN, SPECIFIED OR
IMPLIED ON THESE PLANS, PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK IN QUESTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL
VERIFY EXACT LOCATIONS OF FIXTURES AND OUTLETS AT JOB SITE BEFORE ROUGHING.  ALSO MAY
SELECT DIFFERENT MANUFACTURER  OR FIXTURES WITH EQUAL SPECIFICATIONS. SMOKE DETECTORS
SHALL BE HARD WIRED (110 VOLT TYPE) TO NON- SWITCHABLE KITCHEN OR BATHROOM LIGHTING
CIRCUIT AND SHALL NOT BE CONNECTED ONTO THE LOAD SIDE OF A GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER. SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE LOCATED ON OR NEAR THE CEILING IN THE IMMEDIATE
VICINITY OUTSIDE OF EACH SLEEPING AREA AND ON EACH ADDITIONAL FLOOR LEVEL (STORY) AND
BASEMENTS INCLUSIVE.  BEDROOM ADDITIONS TO EXISTING DWELLINGS WILL BE SUBJECT TO THE SAME
REQUIREMENTS. SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE 110 VOLT TYPE, PROVIDED WITH VISIBLE "POWER ON
INDICATOR" AND A TEST BUTTON WITH BATTERY BACKUP SYSTEM. MULTIPLE DETECTORS MUST BE
INTERCONNECTED. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY WITH LOCAL ELECTRICAL UTILITY COMPANY THE
LOCATION OF SERVICE AND SHALL LOCATE METER AND PANEL AS REQUIRED. VERIFY ALL
CONDUCTORS AND BREAKERS W/ EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS. COORDINATE
RACEWAY INSTALLATION WITH OTHER TRADES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. ALL ELECTRICAL SWITCHES
SHALL BE 48" A.F.F. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL RECEPTACLES SHALL BE 12" A.F.F. UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.
THE ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE ALL PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS REQUIRED BY STATE AND
LOCAL LAWS AND ORDINANCES.
ALL PANELS SHALL HAVE CIRCUIT DIRECTORY CLEARLY LABELED AND MOUNTED INSIDE THE DOOR.
PROVIDE GROUNDING SYSTEM FOR ALL TELEPHONE OUTLETS AND EQUIPMENT PER REQUIREMENTS OF
THE TELEPHONE COMPANY.
COORDINATE THE INSTALLATION OF ALL TELEPHONE OUTLETS, RACEWAYS, ENCLOSURES AND
BACKBOARDS WITH THE TELEPHONE COMPANY.
TELEPHONE CONDUITS SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED IN THE SAME TRENCH WITH POWER AND LIGHTING
CONDUITS.
COORDINATE ALL ELECTRICAL SITE WORK WITH THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR.ALL GARAGE, EXTERIOR,
BATHROOM AND KITCHEN RECEPTACLES MUST BE GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPTOR PROTECTED.
ALL BEDROOM SHALL HAVE ARC FAULT INTERRUPTER RECEPTACLES.
PROVIDE A SEPARATE CIRCUIT FOR A PERSONAL COMPUTER. LOCATION TO BE COORDINATED WITH
OWNER.

CONCRETE
FOLLOW THE STANDARDS OF ACI-316, ACI-301 AND ACI-347.
CONCRETE IS TO BE A MIX DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C-94-72 TO ACHIEVE A STRENGTH IN
28 DAYS AS STATED BELOW, WITH A PLASTIC AND WORKABLE MIX. A CERTIFICATE OF MANUFACTURER'S
MIX AND STRENGTH IS TO BE PROVIDED. NO WATER IS TO BE ADDED AFTER THE TRUCK LEAVES THE
PLANT, WITHOUT APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER OR PLANT ENGINEER. PLANT CONTROL SHALL BE
REQUIRED. MAXIMUM MIX TIME AT POINT OF DEPOSIT IS 90 MINUTES. MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH
AT 28 DAYS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED (UON).
 SLAB ON COMPACTED FILL = 3000 PSI
STRUCTURAL SLABS = 4000 PSI
 FOUNDATIONS = 3000 PSI
 COLUMNS AND BEAMS = 4000 PSI (U.O.N.)
BEAMS = 4000 PSI (U.O.N.)
CONCRETE SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM SLUMP OF 6"
MAXIMUM AGGREGATE SIZE SHALL BE ¾". ALL AGGREGATE SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM-33.
MAXIMUM WATER CONTENT SHALL BE 33 GALLONS PER CUBIC YARD OF CONCRETE.
MINIMUM CONCRETE PROTECTION FOR REINFORCING BARS:
FOOTINGS = 3" BEAMS = 1 ½"  SUSPENDED SLABS = 1"
SLAB SHALL BE A MIN IMUM OF 4" THICK AND SHALL BE REINFORCED WITH 6"x6" x1.4/1.4 W.W.M.
CENTERED IN CONCRETE AND DOUBLED AT PERIMETER. REINFORCEMENT SHALL COMPLY WITH ASTM
A615 AND ASTM A185 FOR WELDED WIRE FABRIC.
ANY ADDITIONAL FILL PLACED ON THE BUILDING PAD SHALL BE COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM DENSITY
OF 95% OF THE T-180 MODIFIED PROCTOR TEST. THE AREA OF THE BOTTOM OF THE FOOTINGS SHALL BE
COMPACTED PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF STELL WITH A VIBRATORY COMPACTOR TO INSURE
UNIFORM DENSITY BENEATH THE FOOTING. DENSITY TESTS SHALL BE TAKEN IN FOOTING AREAS.
SLAB SHALL BE PLACED OVER ONE LAYER OF 6 MIL. VISQUEEN VAPOR BARRIER.
ALL TIE BEAM REINFORCING SHALL EXTEND INTO SPAN OF ANY ADJACENT STRUCTURAL BEAM.

REINFORCEMENT CLEARANCE
CLEARANCE OF REINFORCING STEEL FROM FACE OF CONCRETE TO THE OUTERMOST BAR SHALL BE AS
FOLLOWS, WHEREVER PRACTICAL, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.
FORMED CONCRETE IN CONTACT WITH GROUND                  2"
BEAMS AND COLUMNS                                                              1 1/2"
SLABS                                                                                            1"
FOOTINGS                                                                                    2" FROM TOP, 3"BOTTOM/SIDES
TIE COLUMNS                                                                              1 1/2" TO TIES

POLYETHYLENE SHEET
POLYETHYLENE SHEET SHALL BE PLACED CONTINUOUSLY UNDER CONCRETE SLABS ON GROUND AND
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 6 MIL. THICK. ALL JOINTS SHALL BE LAPPED MINIMUM 12" AND CONTINUOUSLY
TAPED WITH A MINIMUM OF 2" WIDE VINYL TAPE. POLYETHYLENE SHEET SHALL EXTEND AT LEAST ONE
INCH ONTO STEM WALL. WHERE PIPES, CONDUITS, STAKES, REINFORCING BARS OR OTHER OBJECT PASS
THGROUGH THE MEMBRANE, THE MEMBRANE SHALL BE FITTED WITHIN 2" AND SEALED WITH TAPE.
SOIL SHALL BE TREATED FOR TERMITES FOR A DISTANCE OF FOUR FEET BEYOND THE PERIMETER OF ALL
FOOTINGS AND/OR SLAB EDGES.

MASONRY
ALL BLOCK WALLS SHALL BE TWO-CELL HOLLOW CONCRETE MASONRY REGULAR SIZE BLOCK
MANUFACTURED IN CONFORMANCE WITH ASTM C-90 'STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HOLLOW LOAD
BEARING CONCRETE MASONRY UNITS' , GRADE N, f'm = 1500 PSI. BLOCK SHALL BE PLACED USING
RUNNING BOND UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  LAY-UP MASONRY WALLS TO BOTTOM OF TIE BEAMS
BEFORE PLACING CONCRETE FOR IN-WALL COLUMNS. GROUT USED TO FILL MASONRY CELLS IS TO
COMPLY WITH ASTM C-476 AND SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH  OF 3,000 PSI AT
28 DAYS. THE GROUT MIX SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM OF 3/8" COURSE AGGREGATE, AND SHALL BE
PLACED WITH A SLUMP OF 8" TO 10" .  USE ONLY MECHANICAL VIBRATION TO CONSOLIDATE GROUT.
TYPE 'S' MORTAR SHALL BE USED EXCLUSIVELY ON THIS PROJECT. MORTAR SHALL BE PROPORTIONED
AND MIXED AS OUTLINED IN ASTM C-270.HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL MORTAR JOINTS SHALL BE 3/8"
THICK UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. REMOVE MORTAR PROTRUSIONS THAT EXTEND INTO CELLS TO BE
FILLED AND ALLOW A MINIMUM OF 72 HOURS FOR MORTAR TO CURE PRIOR TO GROUTING CELLS.
CLEAN OUT OPENINGS SHALL BE PROVIDED AT THE BOTTOM OF THE GROUTED CELLS AT EACH LIFT.
CLEAN OUTS SHALL BE SEALED AFTER CLEANING AND INSPECTION AND BEFORE GROUTING.  GROUT
LIFT SHALL NOT EXCEED 4'
ALL REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE GRADE 60, MEETING ASTM SPECIFICATION A-615. REINFORCING
STEEL SHALL BE FREE FROM OIL, LOOSE SCALE AND RUST.
MASONRY CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS SHALL CONFORM WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE
"SPECIFICATIONS FOR MASONRY STRUCTURES" (ACI-530.1-99/ASCE 6-99/ACSE/TMS 602-99), AS
PUBLISHED BY THE MASONRY STANDARDS JOINT COMMITTEE.
MASAONRY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PERFORMED UNDER THE DIRECT SUPERVISION OF A "CERTIFIED
STRUCTURAL MASONRY CONTRACTOR". THE SUPERVISOR OF THE MASONRY PORTION OF THIS PROJECT
SHALL BE A  "CERTIFIED STRUCTURAL MASONRY CONTRACTOR" OR A "CERTIFIED STRUCTURAL MASON" .
THE SENIOR MASONRY SUPERVISOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE TO ASSURE THAT THE WORK IS ACCOMPLISHED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
WHENEVER ANCHOR BOLTS ARE TO BE SET IN MASONRY, FILL TWO ADJACENT WITH CONCRETE GROUT.
ALL GROUT SHALL BE FLUID, SLUMP SHALL BE 9" +- 1"

LINTELS AND SILLS
ANY CMU WALL OPENINGS WHICH ARE NOT OTHERWISE FRAMED SHALL HAVE 8"x8" (NOMINAL)
CONCRETE LINTELS & SILLS REINFORCED WITH 2 #5 BOTTOM, MINIMUM OF 8" BEARING BOTH ENDS ,
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
HORIZONTAL REINFORCEMENT EVERY OTHER COURSE 9 GAUGE GALVANIZED LADDER TYPE
DUR-O-WALL (OR EQUAL)

THE ENTIRE AREA PLUS AN ADDITIONAL THREE FOOT AT PERIMETER, SHALL BE THOROUGHLY
COMPACTED BY AT LEAST TEN OVERLAPPING PASSES IN  PERPENDICULAR DIRECTIONS OF A VIBRATORY
COMPACTOR TO ACHIEVE A MINIMUM OF 95% OF MAXIMUM DENSITY AS DETERMINED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AASHTO-180C OR ASTM-D1557. IF FOOTINGS ARE EXCAVATED AFTER THE
BUILDING AREA COMPACTION, THEN ALL FOOTING BEARING LEVELS SHALL ALSO BE COMPACTED TO A
MINIMUM OF 95% OF MAXIMUM DENSITY USING A HAND OPERATED VIBRATORY COMPACTOR.
EXISTING STRUCTURE SHALL BE CONTINUOUSLY MONITORED DURING SOIL COMPACTION. ANY
ADDITIONAL FILL PLACED ON THE BUILDING PAD AREA SHALL BE COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM DENSITY
OF 95% OF THE T-180 MODIFIED PROCTOR, IN LIFTS NOT TO EXCEED 10" EACH.  THE AREA OF THE
BOTTOM OF THE FOOTINGS SHALL BE COMPACTED, PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF STEEL, WITH A VIBRATORY
COMPACTOR TO INSURE UNIFORM DENSITY BENEATH THE FOOTING.  DENSITY TESTS SHALL BE TAKEN IN
THE FOOTING AREAS.

STRUCTURAL-STEEL
DESIGN, FABRICATION AND ERECTION OF STRUCTURAL STEEL SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST AISC
SPECIFICATIONS. ALL STEEL SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM 136, SHOP CONNECTIONS SHALL BE WELDED.
FIELD CONNECTIONS SHALL BE 325 HIGH STRENGTH BOLTS AT COLUMNS, TRUSS CONNECTIONS AND
ALL OTHER CONNECTIONS. HIGH STRENGTH BOLTS SHALL BE INSTALLED USING CALIBRATED TORQUE
WRENCHES. TURN OF NUT METHOD WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. BEAM TO BEAM CONNECTIONS SHALL BE
BOLTED WITH STANDARD WASHERS UNDER NUTS. ALL BOLTS SHALL BE 3/4" DIAMETER U.O.N. PROVIDE
9/16" DIA. HOLES, 4'-0" O.C. MAX. FOR ALL WOOD BLOCKING ATTACHED TO STEEL. CUTS, HOLES,
COPES, ETC... REQUIRED IN STEEL MEMBERS BY OTHER TRADES SHALL BE SHOWN ON STEEL SHOP
DRAWINGS AND MADE IN THE SHOP. BURNING OF HOLES OR CUTS IN STEEL MEMBERS WILL NOT BE
PERMITTED UNLESS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER. ALL LEVELING AND
BEARING RATES, ANCHOR BOLTS (EXCEPT FOR WOOD), AND LOOSE LINTELS SHALL BE FURNISHED BY
STEEL CONTRACTOR. ALL BEAMS SHALL BE FABRICATED WITH NATURAL CAMBER UP. STEEL
CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK ANCHOR BOLT LOCATION PRIOR TO ERECTION AND NOTIFY GENERAL
CONTRACTOR OF ANY DISCREPENCIES SO THAT RELOCATION CAN BE MADE WITHOUT IMPEDING THE
PROGRESS OF THE WORK. STRUCTURAL WELD SIZE SHALL BE 1/4" MIN. STRUCTURAL STEEL SHALL RECIEVE
SHOP COATING OF ZINC CHROMATE. PROVIDE 1 COAT (TWO MILS THICK) WHERE EXPOSED. PROVIDE 2
COATS (4 MILS THICK) WHERE IMBEDDED IN MASONRY.

GENERAL NOTES
ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CODES, RULES, REGULATIONS AND
RESTRICTIONS HAVING JURISDICTION ON THIS PROJECT. IN THE EVENT OF A CONFLICT BETWEEN
PERTINENT CODES AND REGULATIONS AND REFERENCED STANDARDS OF THESE SPECIFICATIONS, THE
MORE STRINGENT PROVISIONS SHALL GOVERN. WORK SHALL INCLUDE ALL ITEMS (BUILDING AND SITE)
INDICATED ON THESE DRAWINGS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  THE ARCHITECT SHALL BE NOTIFIED OF ANY DEVIATION FROM
THE PLANS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.   DRAWINGS SHALL NOT BE SCALED; WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL
TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS. SHOP DRAWINGS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE
ARCHITECT  FOR GENERAL REVIEW AND DESIGN COMPLIANCE. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN
TEMPORARY ELECTRICAL, WATER AND SANITARY FACILITIES FOR THE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.
CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS FROM THE JOB SITE AND LEAVE THE
BUILDING BROOM CLEAN. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ACQUAINT HIMSELF WITH THE SITE PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL VERIFY ALL FIELD CONDITIONS PRIOR TO ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION.  ANY
DEVIATION FROM THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS DISCOVERED AT THIS TIME SHALL BE REPORTED BY
THE CONTRACTOR IMMEDIATELY TO THE ARCHITECT. ALL WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE NEAT, CLEAN, TRUE
AND CORRECT. OMISSIONS FROM THE DRAWINGS OR SPECIFICATIONS OR THE MISDESCRIPTION OF
DETAILS OF WORK, WHICH ARE MANIFESTLY NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE INTENT OF THE DRAWINGS
AND SPECIFICATIONS, OR WHICH ARE CUSTOMARILY PREFORMED, SHALL NOT RELIEVE THE
CONTRACTOR FROM PERFORMING SUCH OMITTED OR MISDESCRIBED DETAILS OF WORK, BUT THEY
SHALL BE PERFORMED AS IF FULLY AND CORRECTLY SET FORTH AND DESCRIBED IN THE DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE IN WRITING, IN A FORM ACCEPTABLE TO THE OWNER, ALL LABOR
AND MATERIALS INSTALLED BY HIM FOR A PERIOD OF NOT LESS THAN ONE YEAR AFTER THE DATE OF
FINAL ACCEPTANCE. SHOULD DEFECTS OCCUR, ALL WORK SHALL BE REPLACED OR PROPERLY
REPAIRED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER. SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION SHALL BE ATTAINED
WHEN ALL PHASES OF THE WORK ARE COMPLETE AND THE SPACE CAN BE USED FOR WHAT IS INTENDED,
EXCLUDING PUNCH LIST ITEMS.

COLUMNS
ALL WOOD AND/OR STEEL COLUMNS SHALL BE 1 HOUR FIRE RATED  TOP OF ISOLATED EXTERIOR AND
PERIMETER COLUMN FOOTING PADS SHALL  MATCH THE BOTTOM OF MONOLITHIC WALL FOOTING
ELEVATIONS (MINIMUM 1'-4"  BELOW TOP OF SLAB ELEVATION,  OR AS DETAILED ON THE PLANS.

DOORS & WINDOWS
ALL BEDROOMS REQUIRE AN OUTSIDE WINDOW OR DOOR OPERABLE FROM THE INSIDE WITHOUT THE
USE OF TOOLS AND PROVIDING A CLEAR OPENING OF NOT LESS THAN 20 INCHES WIDTH, 24 INCHES IN
HEIGHT AND  5.7 SQ.FT. IN AREA. THE BOTTOM OF THE OPENING SHALL NOT BE MORE THAN 44" OFF THE
FLOOR AND NO PART OF THE OPERATING MECHANISM SHALL BE PLACED HIGHER THAN 54" ABOVE
FINISHED FLOOR. SINGLE HUNG WINDOW OPERATING MECHANISMS SHALL BE AT OR NEAR THE SILL.
WINDOWS MARKED 'EGRESS' MUST BE MANUFACTURED TO CONFORM TO THE BUILDING CODE WITH
RESPECT TO MINIMUM EMERGENCY EGRESS REQUIREMENTS PER N.F.P.A. 101 CHAPTER 22-2. A DOOR
MARKED IN PLAN CALLED 'EMERGENCY EGRESS' SHALL BE DESIGNATED AS AN EXTERIOR DOOR NOT TO
BE SHUTTERED FOR EMERGENCY EXIT DURING HURRICANE EMERGENCY CONDITIONS.  DOOR TO HAVE
A MIN. CLEAR OPENING OF 29", AND TO HAVE PASSED REQUIRED IMPACT AND MISSLE TESTS.

GLASS BLOCK
MORTAR TO HAVE COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH: TYPE S - 1800 psi AT 20 DAYS EXPANSION STRIPS TO BE
PLACED PER MFGR. SPECS.

BUILDING IDENTIFICATION
APPROVED NUMBERS OR ADDRESSES SHALL BE PLACED ON ALL NEW AND EXISTING BUILDINGS IN SUCH
POSITION AS TO BE PLAINLY VISIBLE AND LEGIBLE FROM THE STREET OR ROAD FRONTING THE PROPERTY.
SAID NUMBERS SHALL CONTRAST WITH THEIR BACKGROUND

MIRRORS / GLAZING
MIRRORS SHALL BE ANCHORED TO STUDS WHEN IN EXCESS OF 9 S.F. TEMP GLAZING SHALL BE PROVIDED
IN TUB & SHOWER WINDOWS & MIRRORS WHERE LESS THAN 60" A.F.F. ALL GLASS WITHIN 24" OF ANY
DOOR, FIXED GLASS, SLIDING GLASS DOORS OR LOCATED WITHIN 60" OF FLOOR AND ALL GLAZING AT
TUB AND SHOWER ENCLOSURES, WHIRLPOOLS, SPAS, SAUNAS   AND STEAM ROOMS  SHALL BE
TEMPERED SAFETY GLASS.

BATHROOMS
BATHROOM FLOORS AND BASE SHALL BE IMPERVIOUS MATERIALS  TILE FINISH, SELECTED BY OWNER

ANCHORAGE
METAL AND WIRE LATH: "PNEU-FAST" 16 GA. STAPLE SPEC. #101-1, TYPE 1 OR BETTER (HOT DIPPED) SATIN
FIN. GALVANIZED COATING, HAVING A TENSILE STRENGTH OF 130M PSI. STAPLES SHALL BE MIN. 1 1/2"
LONG SPACED AT 4"C/C MAX.

SOIL SHALL BE TREATED FOR TERMITES FOR A MIN. DISTANCE OF FOUR (4) FEET BEYOND THE PERIMETER
OF ALL FOOTINGS AND/OR SLAB EDGES.
ALL PLATES, ANGLES AND MISCELLANEOUS METAL ITEMS TO BE EMBEDDED IN CONCRETE SHALL BE
SECURELY AND ACCURATELY FASTENED TO THE CONCRETE FORM WORK BY A MINIMUM OF TWO (2)
FASTENERS PRIOR TO CONCRETE PLACEMENT.
BUNDLE ALL STRUCTURAL BEAM TOP BARS IN PAIRS OVER SUPPORT WITH TOP BARS FROM ADJACENT
BEAM. ALL TIE BEAM REINFORCING SHALL EXTEND INTO SPAN OF ANY ADJACENT STRUCTURAL BEAM.
ALL ADDED LONGITUDINAL STEEL REINFORCING SHALL EXTEND 6" MINIMUM INTO SUPPORT U.O.N.

STRUCTURAL NOTES
CONCRETE THIS BUILDING DESIGNED PER : 2705.2(a) - ACI-530-2/ ASCE 5-92/ TMS 402-92 2705.2(b) -
ACI-530.1-92/ ASCE 6-92/ TMS 602-92 /ASCE-7
THE FOUNDATION SHOWN HAS BEEN DESIGNED BY RATIONAL ANALYSIS BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD
SOIL BEARING CAPACITY:  2500 PSF, IF INFERIOR SOIL IS ENCOUNTERED OR IF 2500 PSF CANNOT BE
OBTAINED BY PROPER FILLING AND COMPACTION, CONTACT ARCHITECT. VERIFICATION OF THE TEST
FOR MODIFIED PROCTOR ASTM D 1557 SHALL BE FILED WITH THE GOVERNING BUILDING DEPARTMENT.
BACKFILL SHALL CONSIST OF NON-EXPANSIVE, FREE DRAINING, PREDOMINANTLY GRANULAR MATERIAL,
FREE OF DEBRIS AND ORGANIC MATERIAL.    SLABS    2500 PSI    FOUNDATIONS  2500 PSI    COLUMNS &
BEAMS  3000 PSI CONCRETE SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM SLUMP OF 5"
MINIMUM CONCRETE COVER FOR POURED IN PLACE CONCRETE SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:
SLAB ON GRADE        1"
FOUNDATIONS / FOOTINGS
      BOTTOM     3"
      SIDES         2"
SUSPENDED SLABS: 1"
COLUMNS & BEAMS  1 1/2"  TO THE TIES
MAXIMUM AGGREGATE SIZE SHALL BE 3/4".  ALL AGGREGATE SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM C-33.
HOLLOW CONCRETE MASONRY UNITS SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM C-90-667 SPECIFICATIONS. MORTAR
USED TO BOND C.M.U. SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM C-476, TYPE "m" WITH A 28 DAY STRENGTH OF 2500
PSI. LAY ALL MASONRY WITH FULL FACE HEAD JOINTS AND WITH FACE SHELL MORTAR BEDDING.
VERTICAL CELLS FOR MASONRY TO BE GROUTED SHALL HAVE VERTICAL ALIGNMENT SUFFICIENT TO
MAINTAIN A CLEAR, UNOBSTRUCTED CONTINUOUS CELL. ALL REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE GRADE 60,
MEETING ASTM SPECS A-615. REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE FREE FROM OIL, LOOSE SCALE, AND RUST.
ALL DOWELS, SLEEVES, CONDUITS, INSERTS, BLOCKOUTS, ANCHOR BOLTS AND DRAINS SHALL BE IN
PLACE BEFORE CONCRETING.  FOR OPENINGS AND SPECIAL FEATURES OMITTED ON THESE PLANS, SEE
ARCHITECTURAL AND/OR MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.
MINIMUM CONCRETE PROTECTION FOR REINFORCING BARS:
LAP REINFORCING STEEL 30 BAR DIAMETERS MINIMUM, WHEN SPLICED AND SHALL BE SEPARATED BY
ONE BAR DIAMETER OR WIRED TOGETHER. SLAB SHALL BE A MINIMUM 4" THICK AND SHALL BE
REINFORCED WITH 6" X 6" X 1.4/1.4 WELDED WIRE MESH, CENTERED IN CONCRETE DOUBLED 30" AT THE
PERIMETER. SCRAPE SLAB AREA CLEAR OF ALL ORGANIC MATERIAL AND FILL WITH CLEAN SAND TO THE
ELEVATION OF THE BOTTOM OF THE SLAB.  SURFACE MATERIAL CAN BE USED AS SITE FILL.

WOOD TRUSS NOTES
LUMBER DESIGN LOADS    ROOF LIVE LOAD = 30 PSF     SUPERIMPOSED DEAD LOAD = 25 PSF    FLOOR,
LIVING AREAS (DL + LL) = 60 PSF,  (BALCONY = 125 PSF)
ALL LUMBER SHALL BE DOUGLAS FIR WITH A MINIMUM FIBER STRESS OF 1200 PSI, OR SOUTHERN PINE #2
STRUCTURAL GRADE, U.O.N. HATCHED WALLS INDICATE BEARING FRAME PARTITIONS AND SHALL HAVE
2 X  STUDS AT 16" O/C WITH DOUBLE TOP PLATE. ALL EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR STUD WALLS AS NOTED
SHALL BE BRACED WITH 16 GAUGE GALVANIZED METAL TIES ON A V FORM FROM BOTTOM TO TOP
PLATE.  ATTACH BRACES TO TOP AND BOTTOM PLATES WITH 2 - 16 PENNY NAILS.  FOR INTERMEDIATE
NAILING USE 10 PENNY NAILS. TRUSS MANUFACTURER SHALL SUBMIT FOUR (4) SETS OF TRUSS LAYOUT
PLANS AND ENGINEERING SHOP DRAWINGS TO  ARCHITECT FOR REVIEW AS TO COMPLIANCE WITH
DESIGN CONCEPT. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING ALL FIELD
DIMENSIONS. ALL WOOD TRUSSES SHALL BE ANCHORED AT BOTH ENDS WITH APPROVED GALVANIZED
METAL TRUSS STRAPS.  TYPICAL EACH TRUSS.  WHEN BEARING ON CONCRETE BEAM, EACH TRUSS MUST
HAVE METAL TRUSS SEATS CAST INTO CONCRETE. ALL WOOD TRUSSES TO BE ANCHORED TO BEARING
FRAME PARTITION WITH APPROVED GALVANIZED METAL TRUSS STRAPS, TYPICAL EACH TRUSS. ALL
WOOD TRUSSES BEARING ON CONCRETE TIE BEAMS, TO HAVE GALVANIZED METAL TRUSS SEATS CAST
INTO CONCRETE AT EACH TRUSS TYPICAL. TRUSS MANUFACTURER SHALL COORDINATE TRUSS
FABRICATION WITH AIR CONDITIONING DUCT LAYOUT. ALL WOOD IN CONTACT WITH MASONRY,
CONCRETE OR STEEL SHALL BE PRESSURE TREATED. HEADERS FOR FRAMED OPENINGS GREATER THAN
6'0" MUST BE ENGINEERED BY TRUSS MANUFACTURER. ALL HEADERS FOR FRAMED OPENINGS LESS THAN
6'0" HAVE BEEN DESIGNED  BY RATIONAL ANALYSIS BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD THE BRACING
SHOWN IN PLAN ACTS AS A RIGID CEILING PROVIDE REQUIRED DRAFTSTOPS IN TRUSS SPACE.

MECHANICAL
H.V.A.C. CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT FULLY ENGINEERED H.V.A.C. SHOP DRAWINGS TO THIS
ARCHITECT'S OFFICE AND TO THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A LICENSED CONTRACTOR, IN A FIRST CLASS WORKMANSHIP
MANNER.  THE COMPLETED SYSTEM SHALL BE FULLY OPERABLE AND ACCEPTANCE BY THE ENGINEER
SHALL BE A CONDITION OF THE SUB-CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE JOB SITE AND
THOROUGHLY FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF WITH ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS. ALL WORK SHALL BE
COORDINATED WITH OTHER TRADES TO AVOID INTERFERENCE WITH THE PROGRESS OF CONSTRUCTION.
ALL REQUIRED INSURANCE SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR PROTECTION AGAINST
PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE FOR THE DURATION OF THE WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT SHOWN OR INDICATED FOR A COMPLETE H.V.A.C.
SYSTEM IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CODES, AND THE AGENCIES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER
THE PROJECT, AND ALSO THE LATEST EDITION WITH REVISIONS OF THE FOLLOWING PUBLICATIONS:

A.N.S.I. B9.1 MECHANICAL REFRIGERATION    N.F.P.A. PAMPHLETS 90A, 90B AND 91
S.M.A.C.N.A.
A.S.H.R.A.E.
LOCAL, STATE AND NATIONAL CODE, rULES, REGULATIONS AND ORDINANCES

ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE NEW AND BEAR U.L. LABELS, WHERE APPLICABLE. ALL AIR
CONDITIONING DUCTS SHALL BE 1" THICK, 3 1/2" P.C.F. R-6 FIBERGLASS WITH VAPOR
BARRIER JACKET, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  FABRICATE AND INSTALL ALL DUCTS IN
STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S PUBLISHED INSTRUCTIONS.  DUCT
SIZES ARE NET INTERNAL.  ALL FRESH AIR EXHAUST AIR DUCTS SHALL HAVE AN
ADJUSTABLE DAMPER AT GRILLS AND OR FANS.  DUCTS FOR EXHAUST AIR OR FRESH
AIR SHALL BE GALVANIZED SHEET METAL WRAPPED WITH MINIMUM 1" R-6 FIBERGLASS
BATT OR BLANKET INSULATION. MOUNT ALL THERMOSTATS AT +4'-0" ABOVE FLOOR.
ALL INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR MOUNTED H.V.A.C. EQUIPMENT SHALL BE SECURELY
FASTENED IN PLACE WHERE SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS AS REQUIRED BY THE LOCAL
BUILDING CODES. THE H.V.A.C. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SHOP DRAWINGS OF
ALL OF THE ABOVE FOR APPROVAL. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL EQUIPMENT
AND ACCESSORIES IN SUCH A MANNER THAT THEY MAY BE READILY ACCESSIBLE FOR
SERVICING AND OR REPLACEMENT. H.V.A.C. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR BALANCING THE H.V.A.C. SYSTEM AND FOR PRINTING INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE
OWNER'S OPERATION OF THE SYSTEM. ELECTRIC STRIP HEATERS SHALL BE
UNIT-MOUNTED, COMPLETE WITH FUSES, HI-TEMP CUTOUTS (AUTOMATIC AND
MANUAL), RELAYS AND ETC, WITH SIZES ARE REQUIRED. PROVIDE FIRE DAMPERS IN
ALL DUCTS PASSING THRU FIRE RATED ROOF, CEILINGS AND WALLS, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED AND OR SHOWN ON THE PLANS AND/OR AS REQUIRED BY THE
AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.\ ALL HEATING, VENTILATING AND AIR
CONDITIONING SYSTEMS AND ETC. SHALL CONFORM TO THE STATE OF FLORIDA
MODEL ENERGY EFFICIENCY CODE FOR BUILDING CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION
WITH REVISIONS. A/C AIR HANDLING UNITS SHALL HAVE CONDENSATION SAFE
WASTE W/TRAP.

LANDSCAPING NOTES
NO MORE THAN 50% OF REQUIRED TREES CAN BE SAME SPECIES.
ALL TREES SHALL BE PROPERLY GUYED AND STAKED AT TIME OF PLANTING.
SOD TO BE ST. AUGUSTINE "FLORITAM" FREE OF ALL PESTS OR DISEASE. IT SHALL BE LAID EVEN WITHOUT
GAPS.
GROUND COVER AND SHRUBS TO BE LAID OUT IN A UNIFORM AND CONSISTENT PATTERN.
ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL HAVE AN APPLICATION OF SLOW- RELEASE FERTILIZER (AGRI- FORM OR
SIMILAR) AT TIME OF INSTALLATION.
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO AVOID DAMAGE.
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PLANTS AND MATERIALS NECESSARY TO ACHIEVE A  FULL
AND COMPLETED APPEARANCE IN ALL PLANTING BEDS.
THE MINIMUM TOPSOIL DEPTH SHALL BE 6 INCHES FOR GROUND COVER AREAS, 4 INCHES FOR  SEEDED
GRASS AREAS, AND 2 INCHES FOR SODDED AREAS.
ALL LANDSCAPING MATERIALS TO BE FLORIDA NO. 1 GRADE OR BETTER.
ALL EXTERIOR LIGHT SOURCES MUST BE RECESSED WITHIN THE STRUCTURE OR FIXTURE IN WHICH IS
LOCATED.
ALL MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT TO BE SCREENED ON THREE (3) SIDES AS SHOWN WITH SHRUBS SIX (6)
INCHES ABOVE THE ITEM TO BE SCREENED.
GRASS OR SOD SHALL BE PROVIDE IN ALL OPEN AREAS. INCLUDING SWALE AREA AS SHOWN ON
PLANS.
IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO ASSURE PROPER WATERING AND  SAFEGUARD
AGAINST DAMAGE OF ANY KIND DURING THE INSTALLATION UNTIL FINAL APPROVAL OF  WORK.
ALL TREE SPECIES SHALL BE A MINIMUM OVERALL HEIGHT OF 10 FEET WITH A MINIMUM CANOPY
SPREAD OF 4 FEET AND MINIMUM TRUNK DIAMETER AT BREAST HEIGHT OF 2" AND A MINIMUM OF  4 FEET
CLEAR WOOD IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING.
HEDGES SHALL BE MINIMUM 2 FEET IN HEIGHT (FULL TO BASE) PLANTED 2 FEET ON CENTER.
ALL TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED WITH A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES OF TOPSOIL AROUND AND
BENEATH ROOT BALL.
A MINIMUM OF 2 INCHES CYPRESS MULCH (OR APPROVED EQUAL) OR GROUND COVER SHALL BE
INSTALLED AT BASE OF EACH TREE AND THROUGHOUT HEDGE AND SHRUB PLANTING.

SPRINKLERS (IF SPECIFIED)
ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED BY A FULLY AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEM  ADJUSTED TO
PROVIDE 100 % COVERAGE OF ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS. ALL HEADS SHALL BE OVERLAP AS PER
MANUFACTURERS SPECIFICATIONS AND PERFORMANCE ADJUSTED TO 50 STANDARDS.  EACH SYSTEM
SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A RAIN SENSOR.

NON-BEARING INTERIOR PARTITIONS
ALL INTERIOR NON BEARING PARTITIONS SHALL BE 3 5/8" METAL STUDS 26 GA AT 24" C/C MAXIMUM
SPACING WITH 1/2" MINIMUM GYPSUM  DRYWALL EACH SIDE.

SOME ITEMS DO NOT APPLY IF NOT PART OF THE SCOPE OF WORK
TYPICAL GENERAL NOTES

A-0

General Notes
and Specifications

Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 A
N

D
A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

 G
RO

UP
, I

N
C

.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

DE
 D

R
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0



CONCRETE SIDEWALK

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K

2nd AVENUE NORTH
ASPHALT ROADWAY
40' RIGHT-OF-WAY

N
 LA

KESIDE DRIVE
A

SPHA
LT RO

A
DW

A
Y

40' RIG
HT-O

F-W
A

Y

EXISTING 1 STORY
RESIDENCE

21.3'

12'-3"

1
1
'-

4
"

39'-9"

1
3
'-

6
"

2
0
'-

9
"

1
3
'-

7
"

37'-10"

2
1
'-

1
1
"

39'-7"

2
3
'-

4
"

25'-5"

8
'-

8
"

1
9
'-

4
"

36'-3"

7
'-

1
0
"

7
'-

1
1
"

60'-6"

3
0
'-

0
"

25'-4"

2
1
'-

7
"

2
0
'-

8
"

4'-5"

3
2
'-

1
1
"

2
1
'-

4
"

Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 A
N

D
A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

 G
RO

UP
, I

N
C

.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

D
E 

DR
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0

SP-1

Site Plans
and NotesEXISTING SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

00 5' 10'

AREA CALCULATIONS
EXISTING SQUARE FOOTAGE           2 ,614 S.F.
EXISTING UNDER AIR  1,787 S.F.
EXISTING NOT UNDER AIR    827 S.F.
(TO BE TRANSFORMED INTO UNDER AIR)

PROPOSED SQUARE FOOTAGE
HOME ADDITION (under air)         137 S.F.
i

TOTAL ADDITION UNDER AIR 137 S.F.
TOTAL ADDITION NOT UNDER AIR    0 S.F.

i

NEW TOTAL UNDER AIR 1,924 S.F.
NEW TOTAL NOT UNDER AIR   827S.F.

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE 2,751 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD AT BLOCK CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD



CONCRETE SIDEWALK

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K

2nd AVENUE NORTH
ASPHALT ROADWAY
40' RIGHT-OF-WAY

N
 LA

KESIDE DRIVE
A

SPHA
LT RO

A
DW

A
Y

40' RIG
HT-O

F-W
A

Y

EXISTING 1 STORY
RESIDENCE

21.3'

12'-3"

1
1
'-

4
"

39'-9"

1
3
'-

6
"

2
0
'-

9
"

1
3
'-

7
"

37'-10"

2
1
'-

1
1
"

39'-7"

2
3
'-

4
"

25'-5"

8
'-

8
"

NEW
ADDITION

1
9
'-

4
"

36'-3"

7
'-

1
0
"

7
'-

1
1
"

60'-6"

3
0
'-

0
"

PROPOSED 6'

HIGH WALL

WOOD FENCE

NEW
CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

NEW
CONCRETE

PATIO

NEW
CONCRETE

PATIO

REAR

ALUMINUM

BLACK FENCE

4' TALL

EXISTING
CONCRETE

PATIO

40'-0"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
9
'-

3
"

18'-10"

5'-10"

2
1
'-

5
"

19'-6"

2
0
'-

8
"

13'-1"

1
3
'-

7
"

15'-0"

4
'-

0
"

2
'-

6
"

33'-6"

Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

A
RC

HI
TE

C
TU

RE
 G

RO
UP

, I
N

C
.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

DE
 D

R
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0

SP-2

Site Plans
and Notes

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

00 5' 10'

AREA CALCULATIONS
EXISTING SQUARE FOOTAGE           2 ,614 S.F.
EXISTING UNDER AIR  1,787 S.F.
EXISTING NOT UNDER AIR    827 S.F.
(TO BE TRANSFORMED INTO UNDER AIR)

PROPOSED SQUARE FOOTAGE
HOME ADDITION (under air)         137 S.F.
i

TOTAL ADDITION UNDER AIR 137 S.F.
TOTAL ADDITION NOT UNDER AIR    0 S.F.

i

NEW TOTAL UNDER AIR 1,924 S.F.
NEW TOTAL NOT UNDER AIR   827S.F.

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE 2,751 S.F.

LOT COVERAGE INFORMATION

PERCENT OF IMPERVIOUS:          45%

LOT SQUARE FOOTAGE                      10,125

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS (Structure, Asphalt/Concrete Surface)

HOUSE SQFT :                                           2,614 SF.
DRIVEWAY SQFT:                 483 SF.
PATIOS SQFT:                           225 SF.
A/C PADS:                                       16 SF.
WALKWAYS:                           120 SF.

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS (Structure, Asphalt/Concrete Surface)

POOL & DECK SQFT :                                  582 SF.
EQUIPMENT PAD/S:         400 SF.
OTHER:                                        137 SF.
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS:                4,577 SF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD AT BLOCK CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD



WALL  DESCRIPTIONWALL  TYPE
WALL PLAN  LEGEND

EXTERIOR WALL

INTERIOR WALL
EXISTING

EXISTING EXISTING - NO CHANGE

EXISTING - NO CHANGE

EXTERIOR WALL
IN FILL IN FILL OPENING 

INTERIOR WALL
NEW NEW WALLS AS PER DETAIL

CBS WALLS
NEW EXTERIOR NEW WALLS AS PER DETAIL

FRAME WALLS
NEW EXTERIOR NEW WOOD FRAMED WALLS

AS PER DETAIL

1. ALL WORK BY ALL TRADES TO BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL
APPLICABLE, LOCAL, & GOVERNMENTAL CODES, ORDINANCES, STANDARDS
AND RESTRICTIONS.

2. ALL TRADES TO COORDINATE THEIR WORK WITH ALL OTHER TRADES TO
AVOID INTERFERENCE WITH THE PROGRESS OF CONSTRUCTION.

3. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB PRIOR TO
COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ALL
DISCREPANCIES. DIMENSIONS ALWAYS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED
DRAWINGS.

4. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL TO THE FACE OF STUDS, CONC. BLK. OR
EDGE OF MONOLITHIC SLAB FOOTING UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. DOOR AND
WINDOW SIZE OPENINGS TO BE VERIFIED WITH THE MANUFACTURER.

5. IT IS NOT THE INTENT OF THESE PLANS TO SHOW EVERY MINOR DETAIL OF
CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR IS EXPECTED TO FURNISH & INSTALL ALL
ITEMS FOR COMPLETE FULLY OPERATIVE SYSTEMS IN FIRST CLASS
WORKMANLIKE MANNER.

6. INSULATE EXTERIOR MASONARY WALL WITH MIN. R-4.1 INSUL., EXTERIOR WD.
FRAMED WALLS WITH R-19 INSUL. AND ATTIC SPACES WITH MIN. R-30 INSUL.

7. COMPACT ALL FILL TO A MIN. OF 95% DENSITY AND POISON SOIL FOR
TERMITES; MIN. SOIL BRG.: 2500 P.S.F.

8. MIN. CONC. STRENGTH: 3000 P.S.I. @ 28 DAYS. MIN. CONCRETE COVERAGE
FOR REINF. BARS. SLAB: 3/4"; BEAMS & COLS: 1 1/2"; TIE COLS: 3/4"; FORMED
CONC. BELOW GRADE: 2" & UNFORMED CONC.: 3".

9. REINFORCING STEEL TO BE GRADE 60.

10. DETAILS OF CONCRETE REINF. SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH "THE
MANUAL OF STD. PRACTICE FOR REINFORCED CONCRETE CONSTRUTION".
 TRAP.

11. TIE COLUMNS TO HAVE DOWELS INTO CONCRETE FTG. WITH THE SAME
SIZE AND NUMBER OF DOWELS AS VERTICAL REINF. BARS.; REINF. STL. TO BE
LAPPED 30 BAR DIAM. MIN. @ SPLICES.

12. PROVIDE CLEANOUT OPENINGS AT THE BOTTOM OF GROUTED CELLS OF
CONCRETE BLK. TIE COLUMNS.

13. ALL WOOD IN CONTACT WITH CONC., MASONRY OR STL. SHALL BE PRESS.
TRTD. WD. STRUCTURAL LUMBER TO BE A STRESS GRADE OF MIN. F = 1200 PSI
(BENDING).

14. MIN. ELECTRICAL WIRE SIZE SHALL BE #14 A.W.G. (EXCLUDING THE
CONTROL WIRING). ALL CONDUCTORS SHALL BE "COPPER" WITH "THHN"
INSULATION.

15. ALL RACEWAYS UNDERGROUND OR LARGER THAN 2" IN DIAM. SHALL BE
GALVANIZED RIGID STL. CONDUIT OR SCHED. 40 PVC.; OTHER RACEWAYS AS
PER CODE REQRMTS.

16. PROVIDE "GFI" RECEPTACLES IN BATHROOMS, AT KITCHEN COUNTERS, IN
GARAGE AND OUTSIDE LOCATIONS.

17. SANITARY PLBG. PIPING TO HAVE MIN. 1/8" PER FT. PITCH AT ALL HORIZ.
RUNS. PROVIDE CLEANOUTS AT THE BASE OF WASTE STACKS.

18. ALL UNDERGRD. WATER PIPING SHALL BE COPPER TYPE "K; ALL OTHER
WATER PIPING SHALL BE COPPER TYPE "L".

19. PROVIDE AIR CHAMBERS AND SHUT OFF VALVES FOR ALL WATER SUPPLY
PIPING AT FIXTURES; PROVIDE VACUUM BREAKER AND SHUTOFF VALVE ON
ALL HOSE BIBBS.

20. A/C AIR HANDLING UNITS TO HAVE CONDENSATE SAFE WASTE WITH TRAP.

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES

2
'
-
0

"
 
D

R
.

W

REF

1
6

'
-
0

"

2
'
-
0

"

1
'
-
0

"

4
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"
3

'
-
6

"

4'-0" 8'-0"

NEW

CLOSET

D

12'-10"

2
'
-
7

"

7'-11"

77'-5"

52'-8"

4
7

'
-
1

0
"

37'-10"

39'-7"

2
3

'
-
6

"

A-1

Proposed Floor
Plan and Unit

Areas

Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 A
N

D
A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

 G
RO

UP
, I

N
C

.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

DE
 D

R
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0

WINDOW SCHEDULEDOOR SCHEDULE

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
AH-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE (R.O.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD/CLAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUSTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIXED

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. HUNG

AutoCAD SHX Text
H. ROLL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPERATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPERATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
72"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
80"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD/GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BI-FOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HINGED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
QTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRESHOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
HW SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FBRGLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POCKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM/GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R.O.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
63"

AutoCAD SHX Text
37"

AutoCAD SHX Text
80"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT GLASS DOOR- W/ SIDELITES

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
96"

AutoCAD SHX Text
62"

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
192"

AutoCAD SHX Text
80"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPACT GARAGE DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
96"

AutoCAD SHX Text
96"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4



EXISTING KITCHEN
12' - 2"

0'-0"
FIRST F.F.L.

EXISTINGGARAGE
24'-9"

EXISTING MASTER BEDROOM
15'-6"

EXISTING MASTER BATHROOM
7'-5"

EXISTING DINING AREA
10'-21

2"
EXISTING W.I. CLOSET

6'-8"

T.O. BEAM
11'- 0"

4
'
-
0
 
1
/
2
"

1
'
-
3
 
1
/
2
"

5
'
-
8
"

EXISTING KITCHEN
12' - 2"

0'-0"
FIRST F.F.L.

EXISTINGGARAGE
24'-9"

EXISTING MASTER BEDROOM
15'-6"

EXISTING MASTER BATHROOM
7'-5"

EXISTING DINING AREA
10'-21

2"
EXISTING W.I. CLOSET

6'-8"

T.O. BEAM
11'- 0"

4
'
-
6

 
1

/
2

"

1
'
-
3

 
1

/
2

"

 PROPOSED ADDITION
12' -2"

8'-9"

5
'
-
8

"
4

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

3'-4"

6'-8"

Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 A
N

D
A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

 G
RO

UP
, I

N
C

.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

DE
 D

R
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0

EXISTING ELEVATION (SOUTH)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

A-2

Proposed
Elevations

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES

WINDOWS &
DOORS

POS  +42.9 P.S.F.
           NEG  -57.3 P.S.F.

         WORST CASE ALL OPENINGS

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES

PROPOSED ELEVATION (SOUTH)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"



EXISTING GARAGE
23'-5"

0'-0"
FIRST F.F.L.

EXISTING ENTRY
8'-6"

T.O. BEAM
11'- 0"

EXISTING STUCCO BAND
AROUND HOUSE.

2ND BEDROOM
13' - 3"

204

EXISTING GARAGE
23'-5"

0'-0"
FIRST F.F.L.

NEW ENTRY
10'-7"

T.O. BEAM
11'- 0"

NEW  COVERED PORCH
ENTRANCE

2ND BEDROOM
13' - 3"

204

PROPOSED WOOD FENCE
18'-6"

T.O. FENCE
6'- 0"

6' WOOD FENCE

Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 A
N

D
A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

 G
RO

UP
, I

N
C

.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

DE
 D

R
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (WEST)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION (WEST)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

A-2.2

Existing
Elevations

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES

WINDOWS &
DOORS

POS  +42.9 P.S.F.
           NEG  -57.3 P.S.F.

         WORST CASE ALL OPENINGS

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES



0'-0"
FIRST F.F.L.

T.O. BEAM
11'- 0"

EXISTING  BEDROOM
13'-6"

EXISTING  BATHROOM
13'-7"

LIVING AREA
20'-81

2"

0'-0"
FIRST F.F.L.

T.O. BEAM
11'- 0"

EXISTING  BEDROOM
13'-6"

EXISTING  BATHROOM
13'-7"

LIVING AREA
20'-81

2"

Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 A
N

D
A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

 G
RO

UP
, I

N
C

.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

DE
 D

R
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0

EXISTING ELEVATION (EAST)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

A-2.3

Proposed
ElevationsDESIGN WIND PRESSURES

WINDOWS &
DOORS

POS  +42.9 P.S.F.
           NEG  -57.3 P.S.F.

         WORST CASE ALL OPENINGS

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES

PROPOSED ELEVATION (EAST)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"



EXISTING LIVING AREA
12' - 2"

0'-0"
FIRST F.F.L.

EXISTING GARAGE
24'-9"

EXISTING  BEDROOM
14'-21

2"
EXISTING  BATHROOM

14'-6"
EXISTING BATHROOM

9'-1"

T.O. BEAM
11'- 0"

4
'
-
0
 
1
/
2
"

1
'
-
3
 
1
/
2
"

5
'
-
8
"

0'-0"
FIRST F.F.L.

T.O. BEAM
11'- 0"

EXISTING LIVING AREA
12' - 2"

EXISTING GARAGE
24'-9"

EXISTING BEDROOM
14'-21

2"
EXISTING BEDROOM

14'-6"
EXISTING BATHROOM

9'-1"

Nov. 2, 16
DATE:

OF

SHEET:

BLDG. DEPT.
PLAN REVISIONS:

64
76

 K
irs

te
n 

W
ay

, L
ak

e 
W

or
th

, F
L 

33
46

7
Ph

on
e 

| 
56

1.
24

8.
54

98
Fa

cs
im

ile
 |

 5
61

.7
12

.8
89

5

1

2

3

4

FL
 L

ic
. #

: A
A

26
00

27
80

 •
A

R 
95

38
5

TH
E 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 A
N

D
A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

 G
RO

UP
, I

N
C

.

DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY: SP

FZ

MANAGED BY: SP

SANDRA PUERTA
AR 95385

A
 N

ew
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
d

d
iti

on
 a

nd
 R

em
od

el
 F

or
:

LA
KE

 W
O

RT
H,

 F
L

 
20

4 
N

 L
A

KE
SI

DE
 D

R
PN

C
: 3

8 
- 4

3 
- 4

4 
- 2

1 
-1

5-
03

6 
- 0

01
0

PROPOSED ELEVATION (NORTH)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

EXISTING ELEVATION (NORTH)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

A-2.4

Existing
Elevations

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES

WINDOWS &
DOORS

POS  +42.9 P.S.F.
           NEG  -57.3 P.S.F.

         WORST CASE ALL OPENINGS

DESIGN WIND PRESSURES



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 
Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM DATE:   December 7, 2016 

 

AGENDA DATE:  December 14, 2016 

 

TO:   Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

RE:   1122 North O Street 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department for Community Sustainability 

 

TITLE:   HRPB Project Number 16-00100241: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for roof 

replacement to the subject property located at 1122 North O St, PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-356-0060.  The subject 

building was constructed in 1947 and the property is a contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local 

Historic District. 

 

OWNER:  Kevin Brennan 

                 1122 North O Street 

                 Lake Worth, FL 33460 

 

 

BACKGROUND:  

The property at 1122 North O Street has a one-story single-family structure built in 1947 in a Mid-Century 

Masonry Vernacular style.  The property has public frontage on North O Street to the west.  The original 

architectural plans for the main house are available in the City’s property files.  Based on the title block on the 

drawings, this house appears to have been part of the G.I. Home Planning Service, and is listed as “B 107 

Sarasota.”  Based on the original plans, the building has undergone several changes over time, including roof 

replacement from asbestos shingle to asphalt shingle, window replacement, and shutter installation.  Overall, the 

building retains a moderate degree of historic integrity of location, setting, materials, and design. 

 

REQUEST:  

The Applicant is proposing to replace the existing dimensional asphalt shingle roof with a new 26 gauge steel 5v-

crimp roof in White. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

It is the analysis of Staff that the project, as proposed, is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan goals and 

objectives concerning historic preservation and housing due to the fact that the Applicant is proposing a change 

that will have an adverse effect on the historic integrity of the property. 

 

Goal 1.4 Encourage preservation and rehabilitation of historic and natural resources and where appropriate 

restrict development that would damage or destroy these resources. (Objective 1.4.2) 

 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100241 

1122 North O Street 

COA Application – Roof Replacement 

Page 2 

 

Objective 3.2.5:   To encourage the identification of historically significant housing, and to promote its 

preservation and rehabilitation as referenced by the Surveys of Historic Properties conducted for the City 

of Lake Worth. 

 

Policy 3.2.5.1:  Properties of special value for historic, architectural, cultural or aesthetic reasons will be 

restored and preserved through the enforcement of the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance to the 

extent feasible. 

 

CONSEQUENT ACTION:   

Approve the application; approve the application with conditions; continue the hearing to a date certain to 

request additional information; or deny the application. 

 

ANALYSIS:   

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided in this application and outlined the applicable 

guidelines and standards found in the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance, detailed in Attachment 1 – Decision 

Criteria. 

 

The National Park Service and Secretary of the Interior’s Standards have very specific criteria regarding 

replacement of historic materials.  Specifically Standards 2, 3, 5 and 6 apply in this situation: 

 

Standard 2 - The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive 

materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize a property will be avoided. 

 

Standard 3 - Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that 

create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural elements 

from other buildings, shall not be undertaken. 

 

Standard 5 - Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship 

that characterize a property will be preserved. 

 

Standard 6 - Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 

deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the old in design, color, 

texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features will be substantiated by documentary 

and physical evidence. 

 

According to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards, distinctive materials that characterize a property shall be 

preserved.  If a distinctive feature must be replaced, the new feature should match the old in design, color, 

texture, and where possible materials.  The roof material is an important character defining feature of a historic 

property.  According to the City’s property file, the original roof in 1947 was asbestos shingle.  In 2005, this 

material was removed, and the current dimensional asphalt shingle roof was installed.  Asbestos shingle is no 

longer manufactured, however asphalt shingle is similar in composition, material, and design, and is therefore 

the appropriate replacement material. 

 

It is the analysis of Staff that the proposed change to an aluminum 5v-crimp roof is not appropriate for the 

structure, and negatively effects a character defining feature of the property.  The Mid-Century Masonry 

Vernacular style of architecture primarily used flat white concrete tile as a roofing material, and occasionally used 

an asbestos shingle or rolled roofing.  In this case, there is substantial documentation that asbestos shingles were 

the original roofing material.  Additionally, the Mid-Century Masonry Vernacular architectural style did not use 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100241 

1122 North O Street 

COA Application – Roof Replacement 

Page 3 

 

metal roofing, and adding a 5-v crimp roof will create a false sense of historical development by adding an 

architectural feature that was not used in this type of residential design in Lake Worth.  Therefore, the proposed 

metal roof installation does not comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation or the 

City’s Land Development Regulations, Historic Preservation Ordinance, §23.5-4(k). 

 

The National Park Service Preservation Brief #4 “Roofing for Historic Buildings” has been included as Attachment 

#5.  This Brief discusses the issues and options for the repair and replacement of historic roofs.  Under the 

“Alternative Materials” section of the Brief, Staff would like to draw special attention to this paragraph: 

 

“In a rehabilitation project, there may be valid reasons for replacing the roof with a material other than the 

original. The historic roofing may no longer be available, or the cost of obtaining specially fabricated materials 

may be prohibitive. But the decision to use an alternative material should be weighed carefully against the 

primary concern to keep the historic character of the building. If the roof is flat and is not visible from any 

elevation of the building, and if there are advantages to substituting a modern built-up composition roof for what 

might have been a flat metal roof, then it may make better economic and construction sense to use a modern 

roofing method. But if the roof is readily visible, the alternative material should match as closely as possible the 

scale, texture, and coloration of the historic roofing material.” 

 

Staff recommended that the Applicant utilize an asphalt shingle roof, as this roof type most closely replicates the 

original asbestos shingle.  If the Board wishes to consider an alternate material, flat white concrete tile is 

compatible with the architectural style of the structure, however the Applicant would need to verify if the roof 

structure is capable of supporting the additional weight of the tile. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends that the Board deny the application as submitted, given that the metal roof installation as 

proposed by the Applicant does not meet the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation, does not 

meet the criteria set forth in the City of Lake Worth Land Development Regulations §23.5-4(k), and will have an 

adverse effect on the integrity and character of the property. 

 

POTENTIAL MOTION:   

I MOVE TO DENY HRPB 16-00100241: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for roof 

replacement with an alternate material for the subject building located at 1122 North O Street because the 

Applicant has not established by a preponderance of the competent substantial evidence that the application is in 

compliance with the City of Lake Worth Land Development Regulations Section 23.5-4, the Secretary of the 

interiors Standards for the Rehabilitation of Historic Properties, and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

I MOVE TO APPROVE HRPB 16-00100241: Consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for roof 

replacement with an alternate material for the subject building located at 1122 North O Street, based upon the 

preponderance of competent substantial evidence, and pursuant to the City of Lake Worth Land Development 

Regulations Section 23.5-4. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Administrative Decision Criteria 

2. Application Photographs 

3. Roof Brochure 

4. Original Architectural Drawings 

5. NPS Preservation Brief #4 “Roofing for Historic Buildings” 

 



HRPB PR No. 16-00100241 

1122 North O Street 

COA Application – Roof Replacement 

Page 4 

 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 
 



MEMORANDUM 

 

 

DATE: December 7, 2016 

 

TO: Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board 

 

FROM: Aimee N. Sunny, Senior Preservation Coordinator 

 Department of Community Sustainability 

 

SUBJECT:          HRPB Project Number 16-00100241: Consideration of a Certificate of 

Appropriateness (COA) for roof replacement to the subject property located at 1122 

North O St, PCN# 38-43-44-21-15-356-0060.  The subject building was constructed in 

1947 and the property is a contributing resource within the Northeast Lucerne Local 

Historic District. 

 

HRPB Meeting Date: December 14, 2016 

  
 

Per Section 23.5-4k(1) of the historic preservation ordinance, the Board shall use the 

following criteria in making a determination: 

 

A.   What is the effect of the proposed work on the landmark or the property upon which such work 

is to be done?   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the proposed work on the property located at 1122 North O 

Street will have an adverse visual effect on the building.  

 

B.   What is the relationship between such work and other structures on the landmark site or other 

property in the historic district?   

Response: The proposed work will have no direct physical effect on any surrounding properties within 

the surrounding Northeast Lucerne Local Historic District. However, the project would have an 

adverse visual effect on the building itself and an indirect adverse effect on the district. 

 

C.   To what extent will the historic, architectural, or archaeological significance, architectural style, 

design, arrangement, texture, materials and color of the landmark or the property be affected?    

Response: The project as proposed would have an adverse effect on the integrity of material and 

design of the building. The proposed roof replacement is not compatible with the architectural style 

and design of the structure.  

 

D.   Would denial of a certificate of appropriateness deprive the property owner of reasonable 

beneficial use of his property?  

Response: The denial of this COA as submitted does not prevent the Applicant from proposing other 

alterations to the home, or re-roofing with an alternate recommended material.  

 

E.   Are the applicant's plans technically feasible and capable of being carried out within a reasonable 

time?  

Response: Yes. 

 



2 

 

F.   Do the plans satisfy the applicable portions of the general criteria contained in the United States 

Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation then in effect or as they may be revised from 

time to time? The current version of the Secretary's Guidelines provides as follows: 

 

(1)   A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires minimal 

change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment.   

 Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed. 

 

(2)   This historic character of the property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic 

materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the proposed metal roof material would alter the Masonry 

Vernacular character of the structure. 

 

(3)   Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that 

create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural 

elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.  

Response: The installation of a 5v-crimp metal roof on this Mid-Century Masonry Vernacular structure 

will create a false sense of historical development.  Metal roofing was not used in this architectural 

style in Lake Worth, and is not compatible or appropriate. 

 

(4) Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in their 

own right shall be retained and preserved.    

Response: Not applicable to this project.  

 

(5)   Distinctive features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that 

characterize a historic property shall be preserved.   

Response: The roof is a distinctive feature of the structure, and the type of roof material used on the 

structure should be retained.  Although the original materials have been removed, the proposed metal 

roof represents a further departure from the original roof material and the Masonry Vernacular style. 

 

(6)   Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced, wherever possible. In 

the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 

composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities.  

 

Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of 

features, substantiated by historical, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs 

or because the different architectural elements from other buildings or structures happen to be 

available for relocation.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(7)   Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials, 

shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the 

gentlest means possible.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(8)   Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. If such 

resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 



3 

 

 

(9)   New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction shall not destroy historic 

materials that characterize the property. The new construction shall be differentiated from the old 

and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale and architectural features to protect the historic 

integrity of the property and its environment.   

Response: The application is not proposing a new addition or new construction. 

 

(10)   New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such manner 

that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic building and its 

environment would be unimpaired.   

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

G.   What are the effects of the requested change on those elements or features of the structure which 

served as the basis for its designation and will the requested changes cause the least possible adverse 

effect on those elements or features?   

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the historic character of the property would be adversely 

affected by the proposed project as submitted by the Applicant, as outlined above.  The proposal does 

not represent the least possible adverse effect. 

 

Section 23.5-4k(2). Additional guidelines for alterations. 

 

In approving or denying applications for certificates of appropriateness for alterations, the HRPB shall 

also consider the following additional guidelines:  

 

A. Is every reasonable effort being made to provide a compatible use for a property that requires 

minimal alteration of the building, structure or site and its environment, or to use the property for its 

originally intended purpose?  

Response: No change to the use of the property is proposed.  

 

B. Are the distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, structure or site and its 

environment being destroyed? The removal or alteration of any historic material or distinctive 

architectural features shall be avoided whenever possible.  

Response: It is the analysis of Staff that the historic character of the property would be adversely 

affected by the proposed project as submitted by the Applicant, as the original architectural style of 

the building would be negatively affected by the alterations proposed. 

 

C. When a certificate of appropriateness is requested to replace windows or doors, the HRPB shall 

permit the property owner's original design when the HRPB's alternative design would result in an 

increase in cost of thirty (30) percent above the owner's original cost. The owner shall be required to 

demonstrate to the HRPB that:  

(1) The work to be performed will conform to the original door and window openings of the structure; 

and 

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 

(2) That the replacement windows or doors with less expensive materials will achieve a savings in 

excess of thirty (30) percent over historically compatible materials otherwise required by this code.  

Response: Not applicable to this project. 

 





Photo - Google Photos

https://photos.google.com/photo/AFlQipN€tpo2-)G49Ywlw68A3FmEd-bCuyJ-SyhcE0c

. ,\

t:

:l
rl

1t1

1'U6t2016 Photo - Google Photos

l

Ffl ""\€*sr
https://photos.google.com/photo/AFlaipM-KpXp6UBCT61EObNEm5H3iEJwzCWAWjRYjtU_ 1t1



Photo - Google Photos

Photo - Google Photos

1t1

11t6t2016

tl
SOUTH

https://photos.google.com/photo/AFIQipPWE_4svYbWtZelBOxK6F5Jozqr0xotfliJsOz_

tt6no16 Photo - Google Photos

':..s{
jii,a.ij,i:.
€3j::,,::i:

,,:+'

ffi.-,,#llkY-tg-HS



Photo - Google Photos

.:],. : -': !:Y&j

€rffnenc€uctr



WH.H$/Iffi,H-

A GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES COMPANY /\.



--r

Trusted Quality. Tested Strength.

SEM-LOK

Design Features
. Architectural concealedfastener

standing seam panel
. l6"width coverage
. l"seam height
. Minimum roof slope 2/l2pitch
. Hemmed snap lock design
. Low gloss paint finish
. 26 and 24 gauge
. Anti-siphon channel side lap design
. Available in Ribbed, Flat or Striated
. Nailfin design with slotted holes

for attachment
. Architectural Applications

Applied over decking

Material
. Galvalume
. SemCoat Plus

Approvals: MIAM|-DADE . UL . FL CODE

2-1/2" &1-1/4"
CORRUGATED

Design Features
. Architectural exposed

fastener panel
. 24"width coverage (siding) 2p6

21 -1l2" width coverage (roof)
. 1-1/4" and 2-1l2"corrugations

on center spacing availability
. 1/4" or 1/2"corrugation height
. Minimum roof slope 3/i 2 pitch
. Utility, 29,26 and 24 gauge
. Architectural Applications

Applied over decking

Material
. Galvanized Steel or Galvalume
. SemCoat SP or SemCoat plus

Approvals: UL. FL CODE

5-V CRIMP

Design Features
. Architectural exposed

fastener panel
. 24"width coverage
. 7/16" height inverted V(s)
. Minimum roof slope 3/12 pitch
. Utility, 29,26 and 24 gauge
. Anti-siphon channel side

lap design
. Architectural Applications

Applied over decking

Material
. Galvanized Steel or Galvalume
. SemCoat SP or SemCoat plus

Approvals:TDl . M|AM|-DADE. UL. FL CODE

-i6" 
CoverageE-{-aE

2.1/2'CORRUGATED

f-5!.'&edt(24'Sdimcryry,(21tr.Rdcdry!_ ia-Cory _.-rX^-^---=: ,,.

I. I/4" CORRUGATED

www.semetals.com

RIBBED

5-V CRIMP

Technical Support BOO.SE Specs 900J37.7327



DEPARTN,IENT OF REGTILATORY AND BCONOMIC RESOURCES (RER)
BOARD AND CODE ADMINISTRATION DIVISION

MIAMI-DADE COI-TNTY

PRODUCT CONTROL SECTION
1 1805 SW 26 Street, Room 208

Miami, Florida 3317 5-247 4
T (786) 31s-2590 F (786) 315-2s99

ryrvrv. mia nridatle.qov/economvNOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE
Southeastern Metals Manufacturing Co., Inc.
11801 Industry Drive
Jacksonville , FL 32218

ScopB:
This NOA is being issued under the applicable rules and regulations governing the use of construction materials. The
documentation submitted has been revierved and accepted by Miami-Dade County RER - Product Control Section to be
used in Miami-Dade County and other areas where allowed by the Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ).

This NOA shall not be valid after the expiration date stated below. The Miami-Dade County Product Control Section
(in Miami-Dade County) and/or the AHJ (in areas other than Miami-Dade County) reserve the right to have this product
or material tested for quality assurance purposes. If this product or material fails to perform in the accepted manner, the
manufacturer will incur the expense of such testing and the AHJ may immediately revoke, modify, or suspend the use
of such product or material within their jurisdiction. RER reserves the right to revoke this acceptance, if it is
determined by Miami-Dade County Product Control Section that this product or material fails to meet the requirements
of the applicable building code.
This product is approved as described herein, and has been designed to comply with the Florida Building Code
including the High Velocity Hurricane Zone of the Florida Building Code.

DeSCnfpUON: 5-V Crimp Metal Roofing panet System

LAnnf,fNC! Each unit shall bear a permanent label with the manufacturer's name or logo, city, state and following
statement: "Miami-Dade County Product Control Approved", nnless otherwise noted herein.

RfNnWaf- of this NOA shall be considered after a renewal application has been filed and there has been no change
in the applicable building code negatively affecting the performance of this product.

TEnUINATION of this NOA will occur after the expiration date or if there has been a revision or change in the
materials, use, and/or manufacture of the product or process. Misuse of this NOA as an endorsement of any product, for
sales, advertising or any other purposes shall automatically terminate this NOA. Failure to comply with any section of
tliis NOA shall be cause for termination and removal of NOA.

AnvanrrSEMENT: The NoA number preceded by the words Miami-Dade County, Florida, and followed by the
expiration date may be displayed in advertising literature. If any portion of the NOA is displayed, then it shall be done
in its entirety.

[NSpncftON: A copy of this entire NOA shall be provided to the user by the manufacturer or its distributors and
shall be available fol inspection at the job site at the request of the Building Official.

This NOA renews NOA No.l l-0714.08 and consists of pages 1 through 5.
The submitted documentation was reviewed by Gaspar J Rodriguez.

NOA No.: 16-0510.23
Expiration Date: ll/08121

Approval Date: 06/30/16
Page I of5



RooprNc Sysreiu Aprnoval
Category:
Sub-Categorv:
Material:
Maximum Design Pressure:

Roofing
Non-Structural Metal Roofing
Steel
-180 PSF

Dimensions

TnanB Nniups oF PRoDUCTS MANUFACTURED oR Lannr.nn By AppLrcANT:

Product

5V Crimp Metal
Roof Panels

Length :various
Height : ?ro"
Width:.Z5 Vz"

(Coverage width: 24")
Thickness :0.0217
Yield Strength: Min.53ksi

Test Specifications

TAS 125

Product Description

Corrosion resistant, galvalume or
galvanized performed, Kynar or
Superl II coated, pre-finished, metal
panels.

MlxurlcruRrNc Locattox:
l. Jacksonville, FL

EvtopNcn Sunnarrrrn:
Test Agency

PRI Construction Materials
Technologies

PRI Construction Materials
Technologies
Farabaugh Engineering and

Testing, Inc.

Farabaugh Engineering and
Testing, Inc.

Force Engineering & Testing,
Inc.

Hurricane Test Laboratory, LLC.

BASF

BASF

Test Identifier

sEM-o11-02-05

sEM-o17-02-07

T270-07

7166-07

188-0331T-06A-C

0041 -0906-07

Accelerated Weathering

Salt Spray

Test Name/Report

TAS-125

ASTM E 8

TAS-1OO

TAS-IOO

TAS-125

TAS-I25

ASTM G 154

ASTM B I17

Date

fi123110

05107112

08124107

04ltsl07

02126107

09112/07

07112107

07112107

NOA No.: 16-0510.23
Expiration D ate: 17 I 08 l2l
Approval Date: 06/30i16

Page 2 of 5



Appnovnn AssBnanLrES:

System:

Deck Type:

Deck Description:

SIope Range:

Maximum Uplift
Pressure:

"5V-Crimp" Metal Panels

Wood, Non-insulated
tel:.y-" or greater plywood or wood plank.

2":72" or greater

See Table A Below

Deck Attachment:

Underlayment:

Valleys:

Fire Barrier Board:

Metal Panels and
Accessories:

In accordance with applicable building code, but in no case it shall be less than 8d annular
ring shank nails spaced at 6" o.c. In re-roofing, where deck is less than rel:2" thick (minimum
t5ln") the above attachment method must be in addition to existing attachment.

Minimum underlayment shall be an ASTM D 226 Type II installed with a minimum 4" side-
lap and 6" end-laps. Underlayment shall be fastened with corrosion resistant tin-caps and 12

gauge 7-t/a" annular ring-shank nails, spaced 6" o.c. at all laps and two staggered rows 12" o.c.
in the field of the roll. Or, any approved underlayment having a current NOA.

Valley construction shall be in compliance with Roofing Application Standard RAS 133 and
with current published installation instructions and details in Southeastern Metal
Manufacturing Metal Roofing Installation Manual.

Any approved fire barrier having a current NOA. Refer to a current fire directory listing for
fire ratings of this roofing system assembly as well as the location of the fire barrier within the
assembly. See Limitation # 1.

Install the "SV-Crimp Panels" and accessories in compliance with the current published
installation instructions and details in Southeastern Metals Manufacturing Company's
Installation Manual. Flashings, penetrations, valley construction and other details shall be
constructed in compliance with Roofing Application Standard RAS133.
1. At the eave, rake, and ridge, fasteners shall be located not more than 3" away from the

panel end.
2. The leading side edge of the panel should be the side with the anti-siphon groove; each

panel side will overlap this channel to provide a capillary brake.
3. The panels shall be fastened witli metal roofing sealing washer screws with dimensions as

listed below in Table A, in the crown of the inverted V ribs as shown in the details herein.
4. The panel's width fasteners shall be spaced at 77 Yz" to the center rib, Then 72 Yz" to the

next, perpendicular to the slope, thlough the overlapping panel. The flat area ofthe panel
as shown in the details herein.

5. The panels fastening pattem at the interior of the panel, shall be in rows spaced as listed in
Table A below, running parallel to the slope of the roof.

NOA No.: 16-0510.23
Expiration D ale: ll I 08 l2l
Approval Date: 06/30/16

Page 3 of 5

Table A
Maximum Design Pressure

Field Perimeter and Cornerl Perimeter and Cornerl
Maximum Desisn Pressure -67.25 PSF -154.75 PSF -180 PSF
Fastener Tvoe #9 x2" #9 x2" #10-14 x2-112"
Maximum Fastener Spacing 16" OC 8" 0c 8" OC
I Extrapolation shall not be allowed



5.

Lrvur.q.rroNs
1. Fire classification is not paft of this acceptance; refer to a curent Approved Roofing Materials Directory for fire

ratings of this product.

2. The maximum designed pressure listed herein shall be applicable to all roof pressure zones (i.e. field, perimeters,
and corners). Neither rational analysis, nor extrapolation shall be permitted for enhanced fastening at enhanced
pressure zones (i.e. perimeters, extended cornerc and corners).

3. Panels may be rolls formed in continuous lengths from eave to ridge. Maximum lengths shall be as described in
Roofing Application Standard RAS 133

4. All panels shall be permanently labeled with the manufacturer's name and/or logo, and the following statement:
"Miami-Dade County Product Control Approved" or with the Miami-Dade County Product Control Seal as seen

below. All clips shall be permanently labeled with the manufacturer's name and/or logo, and/or model.

MIAMI.DADE COUNTY

All products listed herein shall have a quality assurance audit in accordance with the Florida Building Code and
Rule 61G20-3 of the Florida Administrative Code.

NOA No.: 16-0510.23
Expiration D ate: ll I 08 l2l

Approval Date: 06/30/16
Page 4 of 5



"5-V CRTNP" Mnrar, Roon'PaNrl,s

u2,,

FASTENING PATTERN FOR sV-CRIMP AT INTERIOR OF PANEL

il2"

FASTENING PATTERN FOR sV-CRIMP AT EAVE & RIDGE

SeeTable A
Herein for Maximum
Fastening Spacing

NOA No.: 16-0510.23
Expiration Datez lll08l21

Approval Date: 06/30/16
Page 5 of 5

END OF'THIS ACCEPTANCE



















4 PRESERV ATION 
BRIEFS 

Roofing for Historic Buildings 

Sarah M. Sweetser 

u.s. Department of the Interior 
National Park Service 
Cultural Resources 

Heritage Preservation Services 

Significance of the Roof 

A weather-tight roof is basic in the preservation of a struc
ture, regardless of its age, size, or design. In the system that 
allows a building to work as a shelter, the roof sheds the rain, 
shades from the sun, and buffers the weather. 

During some periods in the history of architecture, the roof 
imparts much of the architectural character. It defines the 
style and contributes to the building's aesthetics . The hipped 
roofs of Georgian architecture, the tllrrets of Queen Anne, the 
Mansard roofs, and the graceful slopes of the Shingle Style 
and Bungalow designs are examples of the use of roofing as a 
major design feature. 

But no matter how decorative the patterning or how com
pelling the form, the roof is a highly vulnerable element of a 
shelter that will inevitable fail. A poor roof will permit the 
accelerated deterioration of historic building materials
masonry, wood, plaster, paint-and will cause general dis
integration of the basic structure. Furthermore, there is an 
urgency involved in repairing a leaky roof since such repair 
costs will quickly become prohibitive. Although such action is 
desirable as soon as a failure is discovered, temporary patch
ing methods should be carefully chosen to prevent inadvertent 
damage to sound or historic roofing materials and related 
features . Before any repair work is performed, the historic 
value of the materials used on the roof should be understood . 
Then a complete internal and external inspection of the roof 
should be planned to determine all the causes of failure and to 
identify the alternatives for repair or replacement of the 
roofing. 

Historic Roofing Materials in America 

Clay Tile: European settlers used clay tile for roofing as early 
as the mid-17th century; many pantiles (S-curved tiles), as well 
as flat roofing tiles, were used in Jamestown, Virginia. In 
some cities such as New York and Boston, clay was popularly 
used as a precaution against such fire as those that engulfed 
London in 1666 and scorched Boston in 1679. 

Tiles roofs found in the mid-18th century Moravian settle
ments in Pennsylvania closely resembled those found in Ger
many. Typically, the tiles were 14- 15" long, 6- 7" wide with a 
curved butt. A lug on the back allowed the tiles to hang on the 
lathing without nails or pegs. The tile surface was usually 
scored with finger marks to promote drainage, In the South
west, the tile roofs of the Spanish missionaries (mission tiles) 
were first manufactured (ca. 1780) at the Mission San An
tonio de Padua in California. These semicircular tiles were 

Repairs on this pantile roof were made with new tiles held in place 
with metal hangers. (Main Building, Ellis Island, New York) 

made by molding clay over sections of logs, and they were 
generally 22" long and tapered in width. 

HABS 

The plain or flat rectangular tiles most commonly used from 
the 17th through the beginning of the 19th century measured 
about 10" by 6" by W ', and had two holes at one end for a 
nail or peg fastener. Sometimes mortar was applied between 
the courses to secure the tiles in a heavy wind. 

In the mid-19th century, tile roofs were often replaced by 
sheet-metal roofs, which were lighter and easier to install and 
maintain. However, by the turn of the century, the Romanes
que Revival and Mission style buildings created a new demand 
and popularity for this picturesque roofing material. 

Slate: Another practice settlers brought to the New World was 
slate roofing. Evidence of roofing slates have been found also 
among the ruins of mid-17th-century Jamestown. But because 
of the cost and the time required to obtain the material, which 
was mostly imported from Wales, the use of slate was initially 
limited. Even in Philadelphia (the second largest city in the 
English-speaking world at the time of the Revolution) slates 
were so rare that' 'The Slate Roof House" distinctly referred 
to William Penn's home built late in the 16oos. Sources of 
native slate were known to exist along the eastern seaboard 
from Maine to Virginia, but difficulties in inland transporta
tion limited its availability to the cities, and contributed to its 
expense. Welsh slate continued to be imported until the 
development of canals and railroads in the mid-19th century 
made American slate more accessible and economical. 

Slate was popular for its durability, fireproof qualities, and 



The Victorians loved to used different colored slates to create 
decorative patterns on their roofs, an effect which cannot be easily 
duplicated by substitute materials. Before any repair work on a roof 
such as this, the slate sizes, colors, and position of the patterning 
should be carefully recorded to assure proper replacement. (Ebenezer 
Maxwell Mansion, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. photo courtesy of 
William D. Hershey) 

aesthetic potential. Because slate was available in different 
colors (red, green, purple, and blue-gray), it was an effective 
material for decorative patterns on many 19th-century roofs 
(Gothic and Mansard styles). Slate continued to be used well 
into the 20th century, notably on many Tudor revival style 
buildings of the 1920s. 

Shingles: Wood shingles were popular throughout the country 
in all periods of building history. The size and shape of the 
shingles as well as the detailing of the shingle roof differed ac
cording to regional craft practices. People within particular 
regions developed preferences for the local species of wood 
that most suited their purposes. In New England and the Del
aware Valley, white pine was frequently used: in the South, 
cypress and oak; in the far west, red cedar or redwood. Some
times a protective coating was applied to increase the durabil
ity of the shingle such as a mixture of brick dust and fish oil, 
or a paint made of red iron oxide and linseed oil. 

Commonly in urban areas, wooden roofs were replaced 
with more fire resistant materials, but in rural areas this was 
not a major concern. On many Victorian country houses, the 
practice of wood shingling survived the technological ad
vances of metal roofing in the 19th century, and near the turn 
of the century enjoyed a full revival in its namesake, the 
Shingle Style. Colonial revival and the Bungalow styles in the 
20th century assured wood shingles a place as one of the most 
fashionable, domestic roofing materials. 

Metal: Metal roofing in America is principally a 19th
century phenomenon. Before then the only metals commonly 
2 

Replacement of particular historic details is important to the indi
vidual historic character of a roof, such as the treatment at the eaves 
of this rounded butt wood shingle roof Also note that the surface of 
the roof was carefully sloped to drain water away from the side of the 
dormer. In the restoration, this function was augmented with the ad
dition of carefully concealed modern metalflashing. (Mount Vernon. 
VirJ?inial 

Galvanized sheet-metal shingles imitating the appearance of pantiles 
remained popular from the second half of the 19th century into the 
20th century. (Episcopal Church, now the Jerome Historical Society 
Building, Jerome. Arizona, 1927) 

used were lead and copper. For example, a lead roof covered 
"Rosewell," one of the grandest mansions in 18th-century 
Virginia. But more often, lead was used for protective 
flashing. Lead, as well as copper, covered roof surfaces where 
wood, tile, or slate shingles were inappropriate because of the 
roofs pitch or shape. 

Copper with standing seams covered some of the more 
notable early American roofs including that of Christ Church 
(1727-1744) in Philadelphia. Flat-seamed copper was used on 
many domes and cupolas. The copper sheets were imported 
from England until the end of the 18th century when facilities 
for rolling sheet metal were developed in America. 

Sheet iron was first known to have been manufactured here 
by the Revolutionary War financier, Robert Morris, who had 
a rolling mill near Trenton, New Jersey. At his mill Mor·ris 
produced the roof of his own Philadelphia mansion, which he 
started in 1794. The architect Benjamin H. Latrobe used sheet 
iron to replace the roof on Princeton's "Nassau Hall," which 
had been gutted by fire in 1802. 

The method for corrugating iron was originally patented in 
England in 1829. Corrugating stiffened the sheets, and 
allowed greater span over a lighter framework, as well as 
reduced installation time and labor. In 1834 the American 
architect William Strickland proposed corrugated iron to 
cover his design for the market place in Philadelphia. 

Galvanizing with zinc to protect the base metal from rust 
was developed in France in 1837. By the 1850s the material 
was used on post offices and customhouses, as well as on train 
sheds and factories. In 1857 one of the first metal roofs in the 



Repeated repair with asphalt, which cracks as it hardens, has created a 
blistered surface on this sheet-metal roof and built-in gutter, which 
will retain water. Repairs could be made by carefully heating and 
scraping the surface clean, repairing the holes in the metal with aflexi
ble mastic compound or a metal patch, and coating the surface with a 
fibre paint. (Roane County Courthouse, Kingston, Tennessee, photo 
courtesy of Building Conservation Technology, Inc.) 

South was installed on the U.S. Mint in New Orleans. The 
Mint was thereby "fireproofed" with a 20-gauge galvanized, 
corrugated iron roof on iron trusses. 

Tin-plate iron, commonly called "tin roofing," was used 
extensively in Canada in the 18th century, but it was not as 
common in the United States until later. Thomas Jefferson 
was an early advocate of tin roofing, and he installed a 
standing-seam tin roof on "Monticello" (ca. 1770-1802) . The 
Arch Street Meetinghouse (1804) in Philadelphia had tin 
shingles laid in a herringbone pattern on a "piazza" roof. 

However, once rolling mills were established in this country, 
the low cost, light weight, and low maintenance of tin plate 
made it the most common roofing material. Embossed tin 
shingles, whose surfaces created interesting patterns, were 
popular throughout the country in the late 19th century. Tin 
roofs were kept well-painted, usually red; or, as the architect 
A. J. Davis suggested, in a color to imitate the green patina of 
copper. 

Terne plate differed from tin plate in that the iron was 
dipped in an alloy of lead and tin, giving it a duller finish . 
Historic, as well as modern, documentation often confuses 
the two, so much that it is difficult to determine how often 
actual "terne" was used. 

Zinc came into use in the 1820s, at the same time tin plate 
was becoming popular. Although a less expensive substitute 
for lead, its advantages were controversial, and it was never 
widely used in this country. 

A Chicago firm's catalog dated 1896 illustrates a method of unrolling, 
turning the edges, andfinishing the standing seam on a metal roof 

Tin shingles, commonly embossed to imitate wood or tile, or with a 
decorative design, were popular as an inexpensive, textured roofing 
material. These shingles 8% inch by 12'/2 inch on the exposed surface) 
were designed with interlocking edges, but they have been repaired by 
surface nailing, which may cause future leakage. (Ballard House, 
Yorktown, Virgina, photo by Gordie Whittington, National Park 
Service) 

Other Materials: Asphalt shingles and roll roofing were used 
in the 1890s. Many roofs of asbestos, aluminum, stainless 
steel, galvinized steel, and lead-coated copper may soon have 
historic values as well. Awareness- of these and other tradi
tions of roofing materials and their detailing will contribute to 
more sensitive preservation treatments. 

Locating the Problem 

Failures of Surface Materials 

When trouble occurs, it is important to contact a profes
sional, either an architect, a reputable roofing contractor, or a 
craftsman familiar with the inherent characteristics of the 
particular historic roofing system involved. These profes
sionals may be able to advise on immediate patching pro
cedures and help plan more permanent repairs. A thorough 
examination of the roof should start with an appraisal of the 
existing condition and quality of the roofing material itself. 
Particular attention should be given to any southern slope 
because year-round exposure to direct sun may cause it to 
break down first. 

Wood: Some historic roofing materials have limited life 
expectancies because of normal organic decay and "wear." 
For example, the flat surfaces of wood shingles erode from 
exposure to rain and ultraviolet rays. Some species are more 
hardy than others, and heartwood, for example, is stronger 
and more durable than sapwood. 

Ideally, shingles are split with the grain perpendicular to 
3 



the surface. This is because if shingles are sawn across the 
grain, moisture may enter the grain and cause the wood to 
deteriorate. Prolonged moisture on or in the wood allows 
moss or fungi to grow, which will further hold the moisture 
and cause rot. 

Metal: Of the inorganic roofing materials used on historic 
buildings, the most common are perhaps the sheet metals: 
lead, copper, zinc, tin plate, terne plate, and galvanized iron. 
In varying degrees each of these sheet metals are likely to 
deteriorate from chemical action by pitting or streaking. This 
can be caused by airborn pollutants; acid rainwater; acids from 
lichen or moss; alkalis found in lime mortars or portland 
cement, which might be on adjoining features and washes 
down on the roof surface; or tannic acids from adjacent wood 
sheathings or shingles made of red cedar or oak. 

Corrosion from "galvanic action" occurs when dissimilar 
metals, such as copper and iron, are used in direct contact. 
Corrosion may also occur even though the metals are physi
cally separated; one of the metals will react chemically 
against the other in the presence of an electrolyte such as rain
water. In roofing, this situation might occur when either a 
copper roof is decorated with iron cresting, or when steel nails 
are used in copper sheets. In some instances the corrosion can 
be prevented by inserting a plastic insulator between the 
dissimilar materials. Ideally, the fasteners should be a metal 
sympathetic to those involved. 

Iron rusts unless it is well-painted or plated. Historically 
this problem was avoided by use of tin plating or galvinizing. 
But this method is durable only as long as the coating remains 
intact. Once the plating is worn or damaged, the exposed iron 
will rust. Therefore, any iron-based roofing material needs to 
be undercoated, and its surface needs to be kept well-painted 
to prevent corrosion. 

One cause of sheet metal deterioration is fatigue . Depending 
upon the size and the gauge of the metal sheets, wear and 
metal failure can occur at the joints or at any protrusions in 
the sheathing as a result from the metal's alternating move
ment to thermal changes. Lead will tear because of" creep, " 
or the gravitational stress that causes the material to move 
down the roof slope. 

Slate: Perhaps the most durable roofing materials are slate 
and tile. Seemingly indestructable, both vary in quality. Some 
slates are hard and tough without being brittle. Soft slates are 
more subject to erosion and to attack by airborne and rain-

This detail shows slate delamination caused by a combination of 
weathering and pol/ution. In addition, the slates have eroded around 
the repair nails, incorrectly placed in the exposed surface of the slates. 
(Lower Pontalba Building, New Orleans, photo courtesy of Building 
Conservation Technology, Inc.) 

4 

water chemicals, which cause the slates to wear at nail holes, 
to delaminate, or to break. In winter, slate is very susceptible 
to breakage by ice, or ice dams. 

Tile: Tiles will weather well, but tend to crack or break if hit, 
as by tree branches, or if they are walked on improperly. Like 
slates, tiles cannot support much weight. Low quality tiles 
that have been insufficiently fired during manufacture, will 
craze and spall under the effects of freeze and thaw cycles on 
their porous surfaces. 

Failures of Support Systems 

Once the condition of the roofing material has been deter
mined, the related features and support systems should be 
examined on the exterior and on the interior of the roof. 
The gutters and downspouts need periodic cleaning and 
maintenance since a variety of debris fill them, causing water 
to back up and seep under roofing units. Water will eventually 
cause fasteners, sheathing, and roofing structure to deteri
orate. During winter, the daily freeze-thaw cycles can cause 
ice floes to develop under the roof surface. The pressure from 
these ice floes will dislodge the roofing material, especially 
slates, shingles, or tiles. Moreover, the buildup of ice dams 
above the gutters can trap enough moisture to rot the 
sheathing or the structural members. 

Many large public buildings have built-in gutters set within 
the perimeter of the roof. The downspouts for these gutters 
may run within the walls of the building, or drainage may be 
through the roof surface or through a parapet to exterior 
downspouts. These systems can be effective if properly main
tained; however, if the roof slope is inadequate for good 
runoff, or if the traps are allowed to clog, rainwater will form 
pools on the roof surface. Interior downspouts can collect 
debris and thus back up, perhaps leaking water into the sur
rounding walls. Exterior downspouts may fill with water, 
which in cold weather may freeze and crack the pipes. Con
duits from the built-in gutter to the exterior downspout may 
also leak water into the surrounding roof structure or walls. 

Failure of the flashing system is usually a major cause of 
roof deterioration. Flashing should be carefully inspected for 
failure caused by either poor workmanship, thermal stress, or 
metal deterioration (both of flashing material itself and of the 
fasteners) . With many roofing materials, the replacement of 
flashing on an existing roof is a major operation, which may 
require taking up large sections of the roof surface. 
Therefore, the installation of top quality flashing material on 

Temporary stabilization or " mothballing" with materials such as 
plywood and building paper can protect the roof of a project until it 
can be properly repaired or replaced. (Narbonne House, Salem, 
Massachusetts) 



These two views of the same house demonstrate how the use of a substitute material can drastically affect the overall character of a structure. The 
textural interest of the original tile roof was lost with the use of asphalt shingles. Recent preservation efforts are replacing the tile roof (Frank 
House, Kearney, Nebraska, photo courtesy of the Nebraska State Historical Society, Lincoln, Nebraska) 

a new or replaced roof should be a primary consideration. 
Remember, some roofing andflashing materials are not 
compatible. 

Roof fasteners and clips should also be made of a material 
compatible with all other materials used, or coated to prevent 
rust. For example, the tannic acid in oak will corrode iron 
nails. Some roofs such as slate and sheet metals may fail if 
nailed too rigidly. 

If the roof structure appears sound and nothing indicates 
recent movement, the area to be examined most closely is the 
roof substrate- the sheathing or the battens. The danger spots 
would be near the roof plates, under any exterior patches, at 
the intersections of the roof planes, or at vertical surfaces 
such as dormers. Water penetration, indicating a breach in the 
roofing surface or flashing, should be readily apparent, usual
ly as a damp spot or stain. Probing with a small pen knife may 
reveal any rot which may indicate previously undetected 
damage to the roofing membrane. Insect infestation evident 
by small exit holes and frass (a sawdust-like debris) should 
also be noted. Condensation on the underside of the roofing is 
undesirable and indicates improper ventilation. Moisture will 
have an adverse effect on any roofing material; a good roof 
stays dry inside and out. 

Repair or Replace 

Understanding potential weaknesses of roofing material also 
requires knowledge of repair difficulties. Individual slates can 
be replaced normally without major disruption to the rest of 
the roof, but replacing flashing on a slate roof can require 
substantial removal of surrounding slates. If it is the substrate 
or a support material that has deteriorated, many surface 
materials such as slate or tile can be reused if handled care
fully during the repair. Such problems should be evaluated at 
the outset of any project to determine if the roof can be effec
tively patched, or if it should be completely replaced. 

Will the repairs be effective? Maintenance costs tend to 
multiply once trouble starts. As the cost of labor escalates, 
repeated repairs could soon equal the cost of a new roof. 

The more durable the surface is initially, the easier it will be 
to maintain. Some roofing materials such as slate are expen
sive to install, but if top quality slate and flashing are used, it 
will last 40-60 years with minimal maintenance. Although the 
installation cost of the roof will be high, low maintenance 
needs will make the lifetime cost of the roof less expensive. 

Historical Research 

In a restoration project, research of documents and physical 
investigation of the building usually will establish the roofs 
history. Documentary research should include any original 
plans or building specifications, early insurance surveys, 
newspaper descriptions, or the personal papers and files of 
people who owned or were involved in the history of the 
building. Old photographs of the building might provide 
evidence of missing details. 

Along with a thorough understanding of any written history 
of the building, a physical investigation of the roofing and its 
structure may reveal information about the roofs construc
tion history. Starting with an overall impression of the struc
ture, are there any changes in the roof slope, its configura
tion, or roofing materials? Perhaps there are obvious patches 
or changes in patterning of exterior brickwork where a gable 
roof was changed to a gambrel, or where a whole upper story 
was added. Perhaps there are obvious stylistic changes in the 
roof line, dormers, or ornamentation. These observations 
could help one understand any important alteration, and 
could help establish the direction of further investigation. 

Because most roofs are physically out of the range of 
careful scrutiny, the" principle of least effort" has probably 
limited the extent and quality of previous patching or replac
ing, and usually considerable evidence of an earlier roof sur
face remains. Sometimes the older roof will be found as an 
underlayment of the current exposed roof. Original roofing 
may still be intact in awkward places under later features on a 
roof. Often if there is any unfinished attic space, remnants of 
roofing may have been dropped and left when the roof was 
being built or repaired. If the configuration of the roof has 
been changed, some of the original material might still be in 
place under the existing roof. Sometimes whole sections of the 
roof and roof framing will have been left intact under the 
higher roof. The profile and/ or flashing of the earlier roof 
may be apparent on the interior of the walls at the level of the 
alteration. If the sheathing or lathing appears to have survived 
changes in the roofing surface, they may contain evidence of 
the roofing systems. These may appear either as dirt marks, 
which provide "shadows" of a roofing material, or as nails 
broken or driven down into the wood, rather than pulled out 
during previous alterations or repairs. Wooden headers in the 
roof framing may indicate that earlier chimneys or skylights 
have been removed. Any metal ornamentation that might 
have existed may be indicated by anchors or unusual markings 
along the ridge or at other edges of the roof. This primary 

5 



evidence is essential for a full understanding of the 
roofs history. 

Caution should be taken in dating early" fabric" on the 
evidence of a single item, as recycling of materials is not a 
mid-20th-century innovation. Carpenters have been reusing 
materials, sheathing, and framing members in the interest of 
economy for centuries. Therefore, any analysis of the mate
rials found, such as nails or sawmarks on the wood, requires 
an accurate knowledge of the history of local building prac
tices before any final conclusion can be accurately reached. It 
is helpful to establish a sequence of construction history for 
the roof and roofing materials; any historic fabric or pertinent 
evidence in the roof should be photographed, measured, and 
recorded for future reference. 

During the repair work, useful evidence might unexpectedly 
appear. It is essential that records be kept of any type of work 
on a historic building, before, during, and after the project. 
Photographs are generally the easiest and fastest method, and 
should include overall views and details at the gutters, flash
ing, dormers, chimneys, valleys, ridges, and eaves. All 
photographs should be immediately labeled to insure accurate 
identification at a later date. Any patterning or design on the 
roofing deserves particular attention. For example, slate roofs 
are often decorative and have subtle changes in size, color, 
and texture, such as a gradually decreasing coursing length 
from the eave to the peak. If not carefully noted before a 
project begins, there may be problems in replacing the sur
face. The standard reference for this phase of the work is 
Recording Historic Buildings, compiled by Harley J. McKee 
for the Historic American Buildings Survey, National Park 
Service, Washington, D.C., 1970. 

Replacing the Historic Roofing Material 

Professional advice will be needed to assess the various 
aspects of replacing a historic roof. With some exceptions, 
most historic roofing materials are available today. If not, an 
architect or preservation group who has previously worked 
with the same type material may be able to recommend sup
pliers. Special roofing materials, such as tile or embossed 
metal shingles, can be produced by manufacturers of related 
products that are commonly used elsewhere, either on the ex
terior or interior of a structure. With some creative thinking 
and research, the historic materials usually can be found. 

Because of the roof's visibility, the slate detailing around the dormers 
is important to the character of this structure. Note how the slates 
swirlfrom a horizontal pattern on the main roof to a diamond pattern 
on the dormer roofs and side walls. (18th and Que Streets, NW, 
Washington, D.C.) 
6 

Craft Practices: Determining the craft practices used in the in
stallation of a historic roof is another major concern in roof 
restoration. Early builders took great pride in their work, and 
experience has shown that the" rustic" or irregular designs 
commercially labled "Early American" are a 20th-century in
vention. For example, historically, wood shingles underwent 
several distinct operations in their manufacture including 
splitting by hand, and smoothing the surface with a draw 
knife. In modern nomenclature, the same item would be a 
"tapersplit" shingle which has been dressed. Unfortunately, 
the rustic appearance of today's commercially available 
•• handsplit" and re-sawn shingle bears no resemblance to the 
hand-made roofing materials used on early American 
buildings. 

Good design and quality materials for the roof surface, fastenings, 
andf/ashing minimize roofing failures. This is essential on roofs such 
as on the National Cathedral where a thorough maintenance inspec
tion and minor repairs cannot be done easily without special scaf
folding. However, the success of the roof on any structure depends on 
frequent cleaning and repair of the gutter system. (Washington, D. c., 
photo courtesy of John Burns, A.I.A.) 

Early craftsmen worked with a great deal of common sense; 
they understood their materials. For example they knew that 
wood shingles should be relatively narrow; shingles much 
wider than about 6" would split when walked on, or they may 
curl or crack from varying temperature and moisture. It is im
portant to understand these aspects of craftsmanship, re
membering that people wanted their roofs to be weather-tight 
and to last a long time. The recent use of •• mother-goose" 
shingles on historic structures is a gross underestimation of 
the early craftsman's skills. 

Supervision: Finding a modern craftsman to reproduce his
toric details may take some effort. It may even involve 
some special instruction to raise his understanding of cer
tain historic craft practices. At the same time, it may be 
pointless (and expensive) to follow historic craft practices 
in any construction that will not be visible on the finished 
product. But if the roofing details are readily visible, their 
appearance should be based on architectural evidence or 
on historic prototypes. For instance, the spacing of the 
seams on a standing-seam metal roof will affect the 
building's overall scale and should therefore match the 
original dimensions of the seams. 



Many older roofing practices are no longer performed 
because of modern improvements. Research and review of 
specific detailing in the roof with the contractor before begin
ning the project is highly recommended. For example, one 
early craft practice was to finish the ridge of a wood shingle 
roof with a roof "comb"-that is, the top course of one slope 
of the roof was extended uniformly beyond the peak to shield 
the ridge, and to provide some weather protection for the raw 
horizontal edges of the shingles on the other slope. If the 
" comb" is known to have been the correct detail, it should be 
used. Though this method leaves the top course vulnerable to 
the weather, a disguised strip of flashing will strengthen this 
weak point. 

Detail drawings or a sample mock-up will help ensure that 
the contractor or craftsman understands the scope and special 
requirements of the project. It should never be assumed that 
the modern carpenter, slater, sheet metal worker, or roofer 
will know all the historic details. Supervision is as important 
as any other stage of the process . 

Special problems inherent in the design of an elaborate historic roof 
can be controlled through the use of good materials and regular 
maintenance. The shape and detailing are essential elements of the 
building's historic character, and should not be modified, despite the 
use of alternative surface materials. (Gam well House, Bellingham, 
Washington) 

Alternative Materials 

The use of the historic roofing material on a structure may be 
restricted by building codes or by the availability of the 
materials, in which case an appropriate alternative will have 
to be found. 

Some municipal building codes allow variances for roofing 
materials in historic districts. In other instances, individual 
variances may be obtained. Most modern heating and cooking 
is fueled by gas, electricity, or oil-none of which emit the hot 
embers that historically have been the cause of roof fires . 
Where wood burning fireplaces or stoves are used, spark ar
restor screens at the top of the chimneys help to prevent flam
ing material from escaping, thus reducing the number of fires 
that start at the roof. In most states, insurance rates have been 
equalized to reflect revised considerations for the risks in
volved with various roofing materials. 

In a rehabilitation project, there may be valid reasons for 
replacing the roof with a material other than the original. The 
historic roofing may no longer be available, or the cost of ob
taining specially fabricated materials may be prohibitive. But 

the decision to use an alternative material should be weighed 
carefully against the primary concern to keep the historic 
character of the building. If the roof is flat and is not visible 
from any elevation of the building, and if there are advan
tages to substituting a modern built-up composition roof for 
what might have been a flat metal roof, then it may make bet
ter economic and construction sense to use a modern roofing 
method. But if the roof is readily visible, the alternative 
material should match as closely as possible the scale, texture, 
and coloration of the historic roofing material. 

Asphalt shingles or ceramic tiles are common substitute ma
terials intended to duplicate the appearance of wood shingles, 
slates, or tiles. Fire-retardant, treated wood shingles are cur
rently available. The treated wood tends, however, to be brit
tle, and may require extra care (and expense) to install. In 
some instances, shingles laid with an interlay of fire-retardent 
building paper may be an acceptable alternative. 

Lead-coated copper, terne-coated steel, and aluminum/ 
zinc-coated steel can successfully replace tin, terne plate, zinc, 
or lead. Copper-coated steel is a less expensive (and less 
durable) substitute for sheet copper. 

The search for alt~rnative roofing materials is not new. As 
early as the 18th century, fear of fire cause many wood shingle 
or board roofs to be replaced by sheet metal or clay tile. Some 
historic roofs were failures from the start, based on over
ambitious and naive use of materials as they were first devel
oped. Research on a structure may reveal that an inadequately 
designed or a highly combustible roof was replaced early in its 
history, and therefore restoration of a later roof material 
would have a valid precedent. In some cities, the substitution 
of sheet metal on early row houses occurred as soon as the 
rolled material became available. 

Cost and ease of maintenance may dictate the substitution 
of a material wholly different in appearance from the 
original. The practical problems (wind, weather, and roof 
pitch) should be weighed against the historical consideration 
of scale, texture, and color. Sometimes the effect of the alter
native material will be minimal. But on roofs with a high 
degree of visibility and patterning or texture, the substitution 
may seriously alter the architectural character of the building. 

Temporary Stabilization 
It may be necessary to carry out an immediate and temporary 
stabilization to prevent further deterioration until research 
can determine how the roof should be restored or rehabili
tated, or until funding can be provided to do a proper job. A 
simple covering of exterior plywood or roll roofing might pro
vide adequate protection, but any temporary covering should 
be applied with caution. One should be careful not to 
overload the roof structure, or to damage or destroy historic 
evidence or fabric that might be incorporated into a new roof 
at a later date. In this sense, repairs with caulking or 
bituminous patching compounds should be recognized as po
tentially harmful, since they are difficult to remove, and at 
their best , are very temporary. 

Precautions 

The architect or contractor should warn the owner of any 
precautions to be taken against the specific hazards in install
ing the roofing material. Soldering of sheet metals, for in
stance, can be a fire hazard, either from the open flame or 
from overheating and undected smoldering of the wooden 
substrate materials. 

Thought should be given to the design and placement of any 
modern roof appurtenances such as plumbing stacks, air 
vents, or TV antennas. Consideration should begin with the 
placement of modern plumbing on the interior of the build
ing, otherwise a series of vent stacks may pierce the roof mem
brane at various spots creating maintenance problems as well 
as aesthetic ones. Air handling units placed in the attic space 
will require vents which, in turn, require sensitive design. In
corporating these in unused chimneys has been very successful 

7 



in the past. 
Whenever gutters and downspouts are needed that were not 

on the building historically, the addj.tions should be made as 
unobtrusively as possible, perhaps by painting them out with 
a color compatible with the nearby wall or trim. 

Maintenance 

Although a new roof can be an object of beauty, it will not be 
protective for long without proper maintenance. At least 
twice a year, the roof should be inspected against a checklist. 
All changes should be recorded and reported. Guidelines 
should be established for any foot traffic that may be required 
for the maintenance of the roof. Many roofing materials 
should not be walked on at all. For some-slate, asbestos, and 
clay tile-a self-supporting ladder might be hung over the 
ridge of the roof, or planks might be spanned across the roof 
surface. Such items should be specifically designed and kept 
in a storage space accessible to the roof. If exterior work ever 
requires hanging scaffolding, use caution to insure that the 
anchors do not penetrate, break, or wear the roofing surface, 
gutters, or flashing . 

Any roofing system should be recognized as a membrane 
that is designed to be self-sustaining, but that can be easily 
damaged by intrusions such as pedestrian traffic or fallen tree 
branches. Certain items should be checked at specific times. 
For example, gutters tend to accumulate leaves and debris 
during the spring and fall and after heavy rain. Hidden gutter 
screening both at downspouts and over the full length of the 
gutter could help keep them clean. The surface material would 
require checking after a storm as well. Periodic checking of 
the underside of the roof from the attic after a storm or winter 
freezing may give early warning of any leaks. Generally, 
damage from water or ice is less likely on a roof that has good 
flashing on the outside and is well ventilated and insulated on 
the inside. Specific instructions for the maintenance of the 
different roof materials should be available from the architect 
or contractor. 

Summary 
The essential ingredients for replacing and maintaIning a 
historic roof are: 

• Understanding the historic character of the building and 
being sympathetic to it. 

• Careful examination and recording of the existing roof 
and any evidence of earlier roofs. 

• Consideration of the historic craftsmanship and detail
ing and implementing them in the renewal wherever 
visible. 

• Supervision of the roofers or maintenance personnel to 
assure preservation of historic fabric and proper under
standing of the scope and detailing of the project. 

• Consideration of alternative materials where the origi
nal cannot be used . 

• Cyclical maintenance program to assure that the staff 
understands how to take care of the roof and of the par
ticular trouble spots to safeguard. 

With these points in mind, it will be possible to preserve the 
architectural character and maintain the physical integrity of 
the roofing on a historic building. 

This Preservation Brief was written by Sarah M. Sweetser , Architec
tural Historian, Technical Preservation Services Division. Much of 
the technical information was based upon an unpublished report pre
pared under cont.ract for this office by John G. and Diana S. Waite. 
Some of the historical information was from Charles E. Peterson , 
FAIA, "American Notes," Journal of the Society of Architectural 
Historians. 
The illustrations for this brief not specifically credited are from the 
files of the Technical Preservation Services Division. 

This publication was prepared pursuant to Executive Order 11593, "Protection 
and Enhancement of the Cultural Environment," which directs the Secretary 
of the Interior to "develop and make available to Federal agencies and State 
and local governments information concerning professional methods and tech-

8 

Decorative features such as cupolas require extra maintenance. The 
flashing is carefully detailed to promote run-off, and the wooden ribb
ing must be kept well-painted. This roof surface, which was originally 
tin plate, has been replaced with lead-coated copper for maintenance 
purposes. (Lyndhurst, Tarrytown, New York, photo courtesy of the 
National Trust for Historic Preservation) 

niques lor preserving, improving, restoring and maintaining historic proper
ties." The Brief has been developed under the technical editorship of Lee H . 
Nelson, AlA, Chief, Preservation Assistance Division, National Park Service. 
U.S . Department of the Interior, Washington. D .C. 20240. Comments on the 
usefulness of this information are welcome and can be sent to Mr . Nelson at 
the above address. This publication is not copyrighted and can be reproduced 
without penalty. Normal procedures for credit to the author and the National 
Park Service are appreciated . February 1978. 

Additional readings on the subject of roofing are listed below. 

Boaz, Joseph N., ed . Architectural Graphic Standards. New York: 
John Wiley and Sons, Inc., 1970. (Modern roofing types and detail
ing) 

Briggs, Martin S. A Short History of the Building Crafts. London: 
Oxford University Press, 1925 . (Descriptions of historic roofing 
materials) 

Bulletin of the Association for Preservation Technology. Vol. 2 (nos. 
1-2) 1970. (Entirely on roofing) 

Holstrom, Ingmar; and Sandstrom, Christina. Maintenance of Old 
Buildings: Preservation from the Technical and Antiquarian Stand
point. Stockholm: National Swedish Building Research, 1972. 
(Contains a section on roof maintenance problems) 

Insall , Donald. The Care of Old Buildings Today. London: The 
Architectural Press, 1972. (Excellent guide to some problems and 
solutions for historic roofs) 

Labine, R.A. Clem. "Repairing Slate Roofs. " The Old House Jour
nal3 (no. 12, Dec. 1975): 6- 7. 

Lefer, Henry. " A Birds-eye View." Progressive Architecture. (Mar. 
1977), pp. 88-92. (Article on contemporary sheet metal) 

National Slate Association. Slate Roofs. Reprint of 1926 edition, now 
available from the Vermont Structural Slate Co., Inc., Fairhaven, 
VT 05743 . (An excellent reference for the many designs and details 
of slate roofs) 

Peterson, Charles E. " Iron in Early American Roofs. " The Smith
sonian Journal of History 3 (no. 3). Edited by Peter C. Welsh. 
Washington, D.C. : Smithsonian Institution, 1968, pp. 41-76 . 

Waite, Diana S. Nineteenth Century Tin Roofing and its Use at Hyde 
Hall. Albany: New York State Historic Trust, 1971. 

- -. "Roofing for Early America." Building Early America. Edited 
by Charles E. Peterson. Radnor, Penn.: Chilton Book Co. , 1976. 


	Agenda Outline
	Item 4A - HRPB Minutes for 11-9-2016 - edit
	Item 5.D.1 - Staff Report
	Item 5.D.1 - Attachment 1 - HRPB 16-00100235 406 N L Decision Criteria
	Item 5.D.1 - Attachment 2 - Photos
	Item 5.D.1 - Attachment 3 - Proposed Architectural Drawings
	Item 5.E.2 - Continuance request.12.14.2016
	Item 5.G.1 - Staff Report
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 1 - HRPB 16-00100236 204 N Lakeside Drive decision criteria
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 2 - Photos
	Item 5.G.1 - Attachment 3 - Proposed Architectural Drawings
	Sheets and Views
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-CVR
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-A-0
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-SP-1
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-SP-2
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-A1
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-A-2
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-A-2.2
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-A-2 .3
	204 Lakeside-Permit Set-A-2.4


	Item 5.G.2 - Staff Report
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 1 - HRPB 16-00100241 1122 N O St Decision Criteria
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 2 - Application Photos
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 3 - Proposed Roof Material
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 4 - Original Architectural Drawings 1122 N O St
	Item 5.G.2 - Attachment 5 - NPS Preservation Brief #4 - Roofing for Historic Buildings



